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HILLSBOROLIGH 
Board of EduCillloli HILLSBOROUGH TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF EDUCA nON 
379 Soulh Bmnch Road, Hillsborough, NJ 08844-3443 

September 2, 2020 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Hillsborough Township 
County of Somerset, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members: 

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Hillsborough Schooi District for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, Including all disclosures, rests with the management 
of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report 
is accurate In ali material respects and Is reported in a manner designed to present fairly, in ali 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the District as of June 30, 
2020 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting prlnclpies generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Ali disciosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's 
financial activities have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's 
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section Includes the basic financial 
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes 
selected financial and demographic information, generaliy presented on a mUlti-year basis. The 
District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and related Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
"Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards", 
and the State Treasury Circular letter 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, 
State Grants and State Aid". Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on 
the internal control structure and compliance with auditor's report on the internal control and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are Included in 
the single audit section of this report. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Hillsborough School District is an independent reporting 
entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14. All 
funds and account groups of the District are included in this report. The Hillsborough Board of 
Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity. The District provides a 
full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 12. These include 
regular, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed the 
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2019-2020 fiscal year with an enrollment of 7441 students, which is 22 students more than the 
previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the 
District over the last ten years: 

Average Dally Enrollment 

Fiscal Year Student Percent 
Enrollment Chane:e 

2019-20 7441.0 .29% 
2018-19 7419.4 .96% 
2017-18 7349.0 -.64% 
2016-17 7396.0 1.05% 
2015-16 7319.0 0.7% 
2014-15 7264.5 -0.41% 
2013-14 7295.0 -1.42% 
2012-13 7399.0 0.40% 
2011-12 7378.0 -0.41% 
2010-11 7408.0 -1.09% 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUtlOOK: 
The current state of the economy has contributed to the Hillsborough area lacking any 
dramatic development or expansion. Enrollments have not noticeably Increased or decreased 
over the last two years. It is expected that once the recession diminishes the development in 
the area will flourish. 

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: 
Hillsborough Township Public Schools continued its unwavering commitment to realize the 
positive effects that our Initiatives have on students, staff, and the community-at-Iarge. 

All curriculum revision was completed as scheduled. The Mathematics, Applied Technology, 
and Business curriculum was revised and implemented. The Sociai Studies curriculum was 
updated to Incorporate LGBTQ curriculum mandates. Continued diligence on providing students 
with the essential knowledge to enter high school at a level three In World languages continues 
to be a focus. Concurrent enrollment opportunities for our high school students continue to 
increase as predicted in cooperation with Raritan Valley Community College with additionai 
opportunities provided In an expanded relationship with Mercer County Community College. 

Hillsborough continues to focus on building equity and minimizing dlsproportlonallty. There 
have been several ways over the past few years that the district has supported this goal, 
including, but not limited to, the Instructional Rounds process. For the 2019-2020 school year, 
professional development focus shifted to a cohort of administrators working with Eddie Fergus 
in a multi-district learning collaborative on equity and disproportionaiity. Additionally, to 
support the teachers In facilitating effective Instruction during the closing of schools during the 
spring COVID-19 pandemic, professional development focused on curriculum and technology 
training for remote iearning. Embedded professional development centering on the workshop 
modei remained a focus for K-8, transitioning to a virtual approach. PlCs, common assessment 
development, our online data warehousing solution, and turn-key technology training across all 
content areas district-wide continues as well. 
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Staff members interested In enrolling and completing graduate coursework remained active. 
Relationships with area colleges and universities continued to flourish. Princeton University, 
The College of New Jersey, Rider University, Rutgers University, Kean University, Montclair 
State College, Raritan Valley Community College and Mercer County Community College are 
several of the Institutions with which we continue to maintain our collegial and professional 
relationships. 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: 
Management of the District Is responsible for establishing and maintaining an Internal control 
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or 
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are complied to allow for the 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). The Internal control structure Is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance with that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; 
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and Judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also Is responsible for 
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure Is In place to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This Internal control structure is 
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management. 

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the 
adequacy of the Internal control structure, Including that portion related to federal and state 
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: 
In addition to Internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The 
objective of these budgetary controls Is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied 
In the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the 
debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital Improvements 
accounted for In the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal 
year is reflected in the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitrnents on 
a line Item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as 
reapproprlatlons of fund balance in the subsequent year. 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: 
The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principals, as 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting 
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and 
account groups are explained In "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1. 

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: 
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At June 30, 2020, the District's outstanding debt Issues Included serial bonds totaling 
$4,210,000, bonds authorized, but not Issued, of $35,416,740 and the long-term capital lease 
outstanding was $12,242,092. 

S. CASH MANAGEMENT: 
The Investment policy of the District is guided in large by state statute as detailed In "Notes to 
the Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which 
requires it to deposit public funds In public depositorIes protected from loss under the 
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted 
In 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking 
Institution In New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in 
public depositories located In New Jersey, where the funds are secured In accordance with the 
Act. 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
The board carries various forms of Insurance, Including but not limited to general liability, 
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft Insurance on property and 
contents, and fidelity bonds. 

10. OTHER INFORMATION: 
Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by Independent certified public 
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of T.M. Vrabel & 
Associates, LLC. was selected by the Soard's audit committee. In addition to meeting the 
requirements set forth In state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements 
of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-0S·0MB. The auditor's 
report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and Individual fund 
statements and schedules Is Included In the financial sectIon of thIs report. The auditor's 
reports related specifically to the single audIt are Included In the single audit section of this 
report. 

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Hillsborough School Board 
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school 
district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of 
our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished 
without the efficient and dedicated services of our central office staff. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dr. Usa M. Antunes 
Superintendent of Schools 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Township of Hillsborough Scbool District 
County of Somerset, New Jersey 

Report on tbe Financial Statements, 

. We haveaudited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
. activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Hillsborough 
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements 
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, wbether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor'S Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor'S judgment, including the assessment of 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information the Township of Hillsborough School District as of June 30, 2020, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United S~ of America. 

Other Matlers 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on Page 14 through 20 and budgetary comparison information of schedules C-I and C-
2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fOrming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Township of Hillsborough School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial 
statements, long-term debt schedules, statistical tables and the Scbedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance as required Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn 
Administratiye ReQuirements. Cost Principles. and Audit ReQuirements for Federal Awards: and New Jersey 
OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit PoliCY for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt scbedules and the Scbedules of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt scbedules and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal 
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Awards and State Financial Assistam:e is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The introductol)' section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures and applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it 

Other Reporting Required by Govemmurt AudJtJng StIlndartb 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 2, 2020 on 
our consideration of the Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over financial reporting 
and on out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Township of Hillsborough's School District 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 2, 2020 

~/Ij,ti?L 
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Certified Public Accountant /' 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of The Hillsborough School District financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Please 
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page I and the District's financial statements, which begin on page 23. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The District's net position increased S4,659,Ooo as a result of this year's operations. Net position of our business-type activities 
decreased by $308,000 or 229.8 percent, and net position of our governmental activities increased by $4,967,000 or 22.5 percent. 

• Total cost ofall of the District's programs was SI61 million in 2019-2020 compared to SI72 million in 2018-2019. 
• During the year, the District had expenses for governmental activities that were $3.842 million less than the $1 S 1 million 

generated in tax and other program revenues. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 
23and 24) provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view on the District's finances. 
Fund fmancial statements start on page 27. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were fmanced in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund fmancial statements also report the District's operation in more detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District's most fmancially significant funds 

Reporting the Dlstrlel as a Whole 

The Statement oC Net Position and the Statement or Aelivitiell 

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 16. One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is 
"Is the District as a whole better off or worse offas a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most 
private-sector companies. Accrual of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. You can think of the District's net position, the difference 
between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District's net position arc one indicator whether its finanCial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to 
consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District's property tax base, and the condition of the District's 
capital assets to asscss the overall health of the District. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into two kinds of activities: 

• Governmental activities: most of the District's basic services are reported here, including general administration. Local taxes, 
tuition and state and federal aid fmance most of these activities. 

• Business-type-activities: the District has two proprietary funds as shown on pages nand 33. 
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Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the District's major funds begins on page 18. The fund financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds-not the District as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. The 
District's two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches. 

Governmentalfonds: most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into 
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer fmancial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to fmance the District's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on 
page 29. 

Proprietary fonds: when the District charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides, these services are reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the sdllle way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the District's enterprise funds (a component of business type funds) are the same as the business­
type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, 
for proprietary funds. 

The District as Trustee 

Reporting the District's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Unemployment Compensation Trust, Scholarship Funds and Agency Funds. Ali of the 
District's fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on 
pages 35 and 36. We exclude these activities from the District's other fmancial statements because the District cannot use these assets 
to fmance its operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended 
purposes. 
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THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

The District's combined net position changed from a year ago, increasing from $22.208 million to $26.867 million. Looking at the net 
position and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, different stories emerge. Our analysis below 
focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's governmental and business-type activities 
as of June 30. 

Table 1 
Net Position (in Thousands) 

Governmental 
Acljyjtjes 

ml1 ZlU2 

Current and other assets 11.625 6,470 
Capital assets 67,131 68,923 

Total assets 78,756 75,393 

Deferred outOows of fC50urCes 5,984 8,299 

Long-term debt outstanding 19,795 23,014 
Aggregate net pension liability 26,645 28,748 
Other liabilities 1,437 158 

Total liabilities 47,877 51,920 
Deferred inflows of resources 9,822 9,697 

Net Position: 
Invested in capital assets, net 

ofdebt 50.406 48,812 
Restricted 9.964 6,017 
Unrestricted (deficit) (33,329) (32,755) 

Total net position 27,041 22,074 

Busincss·typc 
~ 

ml1 lli2 

108 452 
_--,7",,6 91 

_--,-,18",4 543 

_""",35~9 409 
_--",35:<,9 409 

76 91 

(250) 43 
(174) 134 

Total 
fdmDO: OgY~mm!iDl 

ml1 lli2 

11,733 6,922 
67,207 69,014 

78,940 75,936 

5,984 8,299 

19,795 23,014 
26,645 28,748 

1,796 567 

48,236 52,329 
9,822 9,697 

50,482 48,903 
9,964 6,017 

(33,579) (32,712) 
26,867 22,208 

Net position of the District's governmental activities increased by 22.5 percent. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that 
can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements - decreased $574,000. Restricted net position, those restOricted mainly for excess surplus increased by $3,947,000. The 
investment in capital assets, net of debt category increased by $1,594,000. 
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Table 1 
Changes in Net Position (in Thousands) 

Govommental Business-type Totai 
Actjyities ~ fdmm OQvemm~D' 
~ llii Wl! llii D llii 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for Services 25 1,560 2,404 1,585 2,404 
Operating Grants and Contributions 42,436 50,754 452 517 42,888 51,271 

General revenues: 
Property Tax .. 100,677 97,990 100,677 97,990 
Tuition 445 599 445 599 
Federal and State Aid 19,091 19,576 19,091 19,576 
Intere,t and Investment Earnings 72 143 72 143 
Other General Revenues 938 604 938 604 

Adjustment to Capital As,ets 
Total Revenues: 163,684 169,666 2,012 2,921 165.696 172,587 

fmmun e~g~JlSJ imcl!.ldiO& iDdi~g Si2!DmW 
Insttuction: 

Regular 61,927 67,102 61,927 67,102 
Special 22,156 22,681 22,156 22,681 
Other insltuction 11,954 12,797 11,954 12,797 

Support ,ervices: 
Tuition 2,258 1,904 2,258 1,904 
Student and insttuction related ,ervices 25,915 28.739 25,915 28,739 
School administrative ,ervices 7,712 7,971 7,712 7,971 
Gtnerai and business administrative services 5,148 5,475 5,148 5,475 
Plant operations and maintenance 12,264 13,190 12,264 13,190 
Pupil transportation 8,837 8,941 8,837 8,941 

Charter Schools 220 220 
SDA Debt Service Assessment 71 71 71 71 
Interest on long-term debt 255 378 255 378 
Business-type activities: 

Food Services 2,169 2,745 2,169 2,745 
Summer Enrichment 151 95 151 95 

Total Expense, 158,717 169,249 2,320 2,840 161,037 172,089 

Increase in Net Position 4,967 417 (308) 81 4,659 498 
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 
Governmental Activities 
Table 3 
Information below compares revenues and expenditures for all governmental fund types for 2019-2020 and 2018-2019. 
(In Thousands) 

Revenues by Source: 2019-2020 2018-2019 % Change 

Local Tax Levy 100,677 97,990 2.74% 
Tuition Charges 445 599 -25.71% 
Transportation Fees 25 100.00% 
Interest Earned to Invesbnenls 71 143 -50.35% 
Miscellaneous 938 702 33.62% 

Total- Local Sources 102,156 99,434 2.74% 
State Sources 46,815 47,678 -1.81% 
Federal Sources 1,980 2,133 -7.17% 

Total Revenues 150,951 149,245 1.14% 

Expenditures by Function: 2019-2020 2018-2019 % l::bmge 
Current: 

Regular Instruction 34,133 36,075 -5.38% 
Special education 13,085 13,115 -0.23% 
Other instruction 6,851 7,150 -4.18% 

Support Services and undistributed costs: 
Tuition 2,258 1,904 18.59% 
Student and instruction related services 16,251 18,203 -10.72% 
School administrative services 4,286 4,332 -1.06% 
General and Business administrative services 3,502 3,557 -1.55% 
Plant operations and maintenance 9,020 9,667 -6.69% 
Pupil transportation 8,448 8,442 0.07% 
Employee Benefits 44,894 43,139 4.07% 

Transfer to charter school 220 100.00% 
Capital Outlay 1,370 261 424.90% 
Debt Service: 

Principal 2,500 2,505 -0.20% 
Interest on long-term debt 291 414 -29.71% 

Total Expenditures 147,109 148,764 -1.11% 
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Business-type Activities 

District's major Enterprise Funds consist of the Food Service and Summer Enrichment Program. The basic financial statements for 
the major funds are included in this report. Because the focus on business-type funds is a cost of service measurement or capital 
maintenance, we have included these funds in Table 4, which demonstrates return on ending assets and return on ending net position. 

Table 4 
(In Thousands) 

Total Assets 
Net Position 
Change in Net Position 

Return on Ending Total Assets 

Return on Ending Net Position 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
Table 5 
(in Thousands) 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
(Net of Depreciation) 

Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction-in-progress 

Subtotal 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Totals 

Goveromenlal 
Activities 

1Q1l! lli.2 

4,251 4,251 
116,831 116,831 

5,480 5,451 
1,138 

127,700 126,533 
(60,569) (57,610) 
67,131 68,923 

Business-type 
Actjvites 

Food 
Service 

89 
(312) 
(239) 

-268.54% 

76.60% 

1Q1l! lli.2 

417 417 

417 417 
(341) (326) 

76 91 

Summer 
Enrichment 

95 
62 

(69) 

-72.63% 

-111.29% 

~ 
WQ 

4,251 
116,83 I 

5,897 
1,138 

128,117 
(60,9\0) 
67,207 

The District's 2020-202 I capital budget anticipates a spending level of$I,302,540 for capital projects. More detailed information 
about the District capital assets is presented in Note III: C. to the basic financial statements 
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4,251 
116,831 

5,868 

126,950 
(57,936) 
69,014 



DEBT 

At year - end the District had total debt of $19.795 million outstanding versus $23.0 13 million last year - a decrease of 14.0 percent 
- as shown in Table 6. 

Outstanding Debt, at year -i!nd 
Table 6 
(in Thousands) 

Serial Bonds 
Lease Purchase Agreement 
Capital Leases 
Compensated Absences 

An analysis of District Debt is presented in Note 1V:B to the basic financial statements. 

BUDGETS 

Governmental 
Actiyities 

m2 lli2 

4,210 6,710 
12,242 12,995 

273 406 
3,070 2,902 

19,795 23,013 

The variances between the originally adopted budget for the year 2019-2020, and the fmal budget were caused by the appropriation of 
additional surplus which was added to the original budget. [n addition, the State pension payments, which are paid by the State on 
behalf of employees are not budgeted, however they are counted as an expense in the audit. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of 
the District's fmances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. [fyou have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Business Administrator/Board Secretary, Aiman A. Mahmoud, Hillsborough Public 
School District, Hillsborough, New Jersey. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Section A 

DISTRICT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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ExhlbltA·t 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
Statement of Net PoslUon 

June 30, 2020 

Governmental Buslneaa-type 
AcUvltl" A~!I~ltI!! I2l!! 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,072,726.48 $ (7,886.91) $ 5,064,839.57 
Recetvables, net 1,022,563.79 75,614.35 1,096,176.14 
Inventory 4O,94Q.46 40,940.46 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 269,610.60 269,610.60 
Capital reseIVa account· cash 3,666,054.43 3,666,054.43 
Malntenance reseIVe account· cash 1,354,222.10 1,354,222.10 

Capital assets, net (Note m:c.): 67,130,695.03 75,610.31 67,206,505.34 
Total Assets 78,755,672.63 164,478.21 78,940,350.64 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to penSions 5,983,905.00 5,983,905.00 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,963,905.00 5,983,905.00 

LlABtLmES 
Accounts payable 60,823.76 124,155.99 204,979.75 
Payable to state government 14,345.28 14,345.26 
Bond In!afest Payable 58,641.25 58,641.25 
Unearned revenue 62,810.74 234,359.46 317,170.20 
Temporary Note 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 
Long-term liabilities other than penslOlls(Note lV:B.): 

Due within one year 3,399,389.81 3,399,389.81 
Due beyond one year 16,395,463.57 16,395,483.57 

Aggregate net pension liability 26,645,456.00 26,645,456.00 

Total liabilities 47,676,932.39 358,515.45 46,235,447.64 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Defened Inflows related to pensions 9,622,303.00 9,622,303.00 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,622,303.00 9,622,303.00 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment In capital assets 50,405,821.30 75,810.31 50,461,831.61 
Restricted for: 

Capital projacts 2,975,665.23 2,975,665.23 
Debt service (45,207.12) (45,207.12) 
Other purposes 7,033,401.63 7,033,401.63 

Unrestricted (33,329,138.80) (249,647.55) (33,578,966.35) 

Total Net Position $ 27,040,542.24 $ 1174,037.24) $ 26,886,505.00 

The accompanying Notes to FInancial Statements are an Integral part of this stetement. 
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~ 

F"-ragtama 

Governmental aCtivitiea: 
InsIruc:tian: 

Regular 
Spedal education 
0Ihet1nalNdlon 

Support_: 
Tuition _and instrudian ___ 

School administrative seIYices 
Gena and businoU adminialllllive __ 
PIont operations and _ 

Pupil transponatlon 
Charter Schools 
SOA DebI_-....-. 
Interest 00 Iong-Ienn debt 

Total govemmental aCtivities 

Business-type activities: 
Food_ 
Summer EnridVnent 

Total businM&-type._ 
Total prinwy government 

BOARD OF EOUCAllON 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH _01_ 
Fertile V .... EndMI June 30. 2020 

PI'OCIIUft Revenua 
OponItng Capitol 

Charg .. ror Gronts and Grantaand 
Ell ........ liIIma Conb1bution! Cogtr!!PU!!gno 

$ 61.928.481.04 $ - $ 15.213.500.85 $ 
22.155."0.84 7.500.952.48 
11.95<.'98.25 2,935 •• 68.22 

2.256.300.20 ' .'27.597.79 
25,914.554.80 S.73S.106.57 

7.712,.8827 1.872,8'0.31 
5.1'7.57024 981.181.73 

12.284.432.24 1.873,898.14 
8,837,432.1' 24,844.56 ',620,884.34 

219.973.'7 
71.124.00 

255,'20.00 255,'20.00 
156,7'7.105." 2',9«.56 '2,'38.32"'3 

2,"9.'87.22 1.478,898.47 4".550." 
150.698.60 81,220.00 

2.319.883.82 '.560,118.47 451,550.'5 
$ 161,038,988.28 $ ',56s,o'3.03 S '2,887.671.56 $ 

Gener.aJ revenues: 
Taxes: 

p __ • _Ioreen8IaJ pu_ 
~ _. levied lor debt service prinCIpal 

F __ ~aldnot_ 

Tuition (othorthan _ ochooIs) 
In_EarnIngs ---Total gen8f1II raven ..... _twns. exIIlIonIinaIy Hema end_ ... 

Change In He! PooItIon 
Net Po.lllo"-begh' ,,g . .. _ 

He! PosItlon-ending 

11Ht accompanying HolM to financial stMamenta .... an Integral part ofthla ataC8ment 

_A-2 

Not (""-) R ........ and 
~ In Net PoalUon 

GovemlMt1tai Buslnooo-Iypo 
AdMt!tt AdMt!tt IlIIII 

$ ('8.712,960.19) $ $ (48.712.960.19) 
(" .8" .'88.18) (1 ....... 88.1.) 
(9.0'9.030.03) (9.0'9.030.03) 

2,169.287.59 2,'69.287.59 
(20.179 .... .23) (20 •• 79 ..... 23) 
(5._.387.98) (5.839.387.88) 
(4.186.388.5') (4.'88.388.5') 

('0.390.733.'0) ('0.390.733.'0) 
(7.191.80321) (7.191.80321) 

(21 •• 973.87) (2'9.973.87) 
(71.'2'.00) (71.12'.00) 

("6,255,83U7) (116,255,839.'7) 

(238.738.60) (238.738.60) 
{OB."no.GO) {89.478.60) 

(308.215.20) !306,215.2O) 
$ !"8,255,839.47) ! (308.215201 $ (116.584.050.67) 

$ 88.311.708.00 $ $ 98,311.708.00 
2.384.788.00 2.304.798.00 

19.000.698.52 19.080,888.52 
"5.099.03 445.099.03 

71.1HI2.41 71,982.41 
837,695.38 837,685.38 

121,222,158.34 1211~ 159.34 
'._.319.87 (308,215.20) 4.688.104.87 

22,07'.222.37 134,177.98 22.208.400.33 

$ 27.040.502.24 $ (17,.037241 $ 28.888.505.00 



SecdonB 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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ASSm 
CaM and (';Ish equivalents R_fnlm ___ 

Other rwctIvebiel 
RHIJIded cuh and cuh oquIY_ 

Total At_ 

LlABlUTlEI AND FUND BALANCES 
Ua-= 

-~ p~abIt to stat. government 
Uneomod revenue 
TOIIIJIOIWY 1I0Io 

Total UabIitIH 

Fund !3aIIncel: 
R,strId8d for: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HIWIIIOROUOH 

&alane.lhoot 
Gov.mmental Fund. 

June 30, 2020 

8poc1lll CaIIIIII 
O.n ..... R'venul Pro) .... 

flIlIlI flIlIlI flIlIlI 

S 4,833,433.21 S 125,",1 .• 7 S 21K1,G10.1O 
922,725.32 62,120.11 
47,717.71 

5.24.,271.53 

S 11.'.",152.81 $ '".B71.78 I 288,810.80 

s S 110,623.78 $ 
14,345.28 
82,81 •• 74 

'120°1000.00 
1nI878.78 ,,200, ...... 

_e-s..pIue.~"" 

Subsequent Veat, Expendtu .... 

ROMMI "" Emt .. s..pIue 
C ..... R ..... _ 

Mllntenance Reserve Account 
COfIIIaI ProjecII 
DeblSeMco 

""'Ignodle: 
~""SU~Y ..... 

E>q>andl1uroa 
Unuaigned 

T .... Fund_ 

T .... L--.and Fund_ 

2,317,.87.41 
3,282,012.12 
3,8H,054.43 
1,354,222.1. 

236,388.51 

{",18'.74) 
11.'44.'52.11 

S "1'441'52.81 $ 117.979.18 

Amauntl repofted for ~ KIMtIn In the IfatemenI at 
net po-. (A-1) ... dIf __ 

AdIu_1e DablSeMce Fund .... ~ ""tho 
eccrull or fntemt upon ... 

COfIbI_lIIOdlngovam ___ ""'_ 

relOurc8,lnd therefore Ire not reported In the fund., The cost 

$ 

of the "Mta ill 1127,191,101.82 and tho _ ~ 
11 sao,581,913.51. 

P..-_ .... ofdel.mId_1IId _of-. 

Long.tenn IlablliUH. Indudlng bond, payable, ant not due lind 
fI8Y"* In tho cunont period oncI_ ... "",,..,..,. .. _'n lh. fund. ( ... Nolo IV:B.) 

Tho accompenytng _ to FlMndalSlllomtnta _ .. 1n1ogroI patlof1hla._ 
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(8'.,381.20) 

(910.389.2Q) 

2891810,eo 

Eahlbll B-1 

DoIIt Total 
Service Gov.mmlntll 

flIII!I flUI!II 

$ 13,434.13 S 6,312,337.21 
974,148,., 
47,717.78 

5.240,276.53 

• 131434.13 I 11,.25,177.60 

S S 80,823.78 
14,345.26 
12,81 •• 74 

,,2 •• , ...... 

1~n,.79.7e 

2,387,097.41 
3,282,012.12 
3,le,.54.43 
1,354,222.1. 
(".,311.20) 

13,434.13 13,434.13 

238,388.58 

," 1891.7") 
13,434.13 10,247,'97.84 

• 131434,13 

(51,641.25) 

87,'30,895.03 

(30,413,158.00) 

{19,114,853.38) 

S 27.04.,542.24 



ExhIbIIB-2 
SOARD OF EDUCATlOH 

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
StitIment of Rlvlnu .. , ExpendIturH. And Changllin Fund BaI8nc:H 

GowmmonlJll Funda 
For the V,.r Endld Junl 3D, 2020 

Special Capitol Debt Total 
G.neral Rev,nul ProJ- S.rvlcI Govemmlntll 
flII!!I flII!!I flII!!I flIII!I flIII!II 

REVENUES 
LocaIlOUtceI: 
~"'Iovy $ 88,311,708.00 $ $ $ 2,384,798.00 $ loo,878,soe.00 

Tuition charges 4-45,099.03 4-45,098.03 

TrantpOftlllan INs 24,1144.55 24,9«.55 

1nWwt..ned on '""GIb,IIma 49,ID.80 1,594.12 50,551.92 

Interett .amld on Capital RHIfVI Fund. 18,888.39 18,888.39 

Intere.t limed on Maintenance Rnlrve Fund. 4,222.10 4,222.10 -- 8114,24-4.92 43,850.48 937,895.35 

Total- Local Sou"," 99,748,384.80 43,850.48 1,594.12 2,384,798.00 102,155,407.38 

State sources 48,354,755.M 33,482.74 428,312.00 48,814,533.40 
F-.r_ 89,917.118 1,909,971.8' 1,979,1189.55 

Total Revlnuel 148,171,041.32 1,987,084.89 1,594.12 2,791,110.00 150,950,830.33 

EXPEHDITUIIElI 
CUl11Int 

Regular In.tnldlon 33,953,801.08 179,070.70 34,132,871.78 
SpocIaI_1naIIUdMI 11,4-47,245.98 1,838,028.08 13,085,274.04 

Other Inst/ucUon e,1!J51,12D.3D 8,851,120.30 

Support aervfcn and undistributed costs: 
TuiCIon 2.258,300.20 2,258.300,20 
Student and Inltructton related .Irvlces 18,178,980.80 73,M4.11 18,250,824.91 
Schoof administrative aelVlcu 4,288,204.35 4,288,204.35 GonotII _____ 

3,502,388.21 3.502,388.21 
Plant opendIon. and maintenance 9,020,380.81 9,020,380.81 

Pupil Ironiportlllan 8,447,502.58 8,4-47,502.58 
UnoIIocaIlld _ 

4-4,797,274.34 88,322.00 4-4,1193,598.34 T_ID __ 
219,973.87 219,973.87 

Capitol aullay 232,050.82 1,138,121.74 1,370,172.35 
Oebt_ 

PrtndpoI 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 

Intere.t and OChIf charge, 291,110.00 291,110.00 

T olaf EJopendltUI8I 141,193,180.80 U 87,084.89 1,135,121.74 2,791,110.00 147,109,497.53 

Excess (OIftc1ency) of revenu •• 

"""' oxpondIIUm 4,977,1180.42 (1 ,135,527.82) 3,841,332.80 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 
T_1n 1,594,12 1,594.12 
Trans/OIS (out) (1,594.12) (1,5114.12) 

rotll! Other Financing SOUrces and (U ... ) (1,594.12) 1,594.12 

Net chango'" lund bllances 4,977,880.42 (1,138,121.74) 1,5114.12 3,841,332.80 
Fund Bolonce-July 1 8,188,292.49 227,732.54 11,840.01 8,405,M5.04 

Fund a.rlnce-Juna 30 $ 11,14-4,152.91 $ $ 19tOI389.20) $ 13,434.13 S 10,247,197.84 

Th' Iccgmplnylng Note. to Flnanclar Statement. .... an Integl'll Plrt of thll statement. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HIllSBOROUGH 

R~Dncl"Uon of the Statement of RlvenuH, ExpencUtu,u. 
and Chlnges In Fund Ballnc •• of Govemm ... tli Fundi 

to tho_ntol_ .. 
For tho Y_ Ended Juno 30. 2020 

Amounts r0p0r1ld for govemm8l1taf actIvItI .. In tho s!B_I 
oJ adIvItieI ( .... 2).,. dill ...... becau .. : 

In tho 118_ oJ _, IntantIlon Iong-tann _In tho statomont or actMtIes Is accrued, 
regardleu of when due. In the govemmental fundi. Interest " reported when due. The difference 
In accrued Intaresl II .n addltfon In tIlo roconciltaliOn. (+) 

-paid 
Intareslacaued 

CopItIt outIayI .. t8fOI1ed In governmental funds .. __ .... H_.1n 1110 _ of 
ocIvItIea.1ho ccot or those _II _ <Nfl( their _lid useJulllveo.1 depnlclallon _se. 
Thliis thl amounl by which capital oudlYs OlCCOtIdad deplOclauon In tho portod. 

O_p!OcIatIon _ .. 

captaf outIaye (0lCduaive of capital 
Ie .. _ plfnclpolpeymen," end 
SDA Oebt SIIVlco Alseasmonl) 

In thl statement of actIvltlel, only the gain on the dlaposal at ClpttalaSMtlls reported, whereat 
In !he goyemmentaI fundi. tho proceeds from a _1ncnI ... __ ThIll. tho chongo In 
not..- wtlcIffer from !he chongo In fund _ by !he ccot or!he.- removed. (-) 

In the statement at activlUea. certafn op.raUng expeI1aee, I.g., compensated absancea (vacaUons and 
unused oIcI< plY) .... _ by tho IIII1OUI1Ia _ dUI1ng tho year. In tho govemmontaf fUndI. 
_. ~ for_llama .. 18pDf1ed1n Ihe_or_....,..... used (pold). 
Whon the _ amounl uceodolha paid amoun~ tho _co I. reduction In thl reconciliadon (-): 
when the paid amount exceeds Ule eamed amount the difference Is an addition In the recondllatlon (+). 

CloYenIawIIIl fIInds ""'" dUOrict pcosIoo _. apcadlIuoa. In tbe __ or_ 
howcvcr,lhc cast of pension benefits e.ncd net of employee contributkms [s reported II pcmloo expcnK. 

District pension c:onbibuUon,· PERS 
Cool of beneflts _ not or 
empo~ea contrtbuUona 

Paymenl of Iong-I.rm lIab~ty principal II an expendllunt In the governmental lunda. 1M Iho repayment reduces 
Iong-tann llabilliealn the ._ of not .... and II not rorxxtad In tile l-...rt of ac:tMtIeo. 

Debt plfnclpal 
C.pltall .... prlnclp.1 

Proceedo f!orn __ are a financing ooun:e In tile governmental lunda. They ... not '"'""'"" In 
thO .tatemont or adMtIeo: luuIng debt _long-term liabilities In 1110 118_ or net 1 ... 11. 

Proceeds of Iong·term dab! 
Capital I .... proceeds 

R_1n thO.~ or actMtIes which do not ptOY1de ",,,,,,,I financial rosoun:et are not 
reported as Rlvenues In the fundi. (+) 

CIIange In not position of gowmmantaI_ 

TIHIaccompanytng Not" to Ffnanclof Slatlmonts .. an lntagraJ port of thllstatemont. 
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2111.110.00 
(255,420.00) 

(2,958.790.87) 

1,188,150.42 

1.446.823.00 

(1,712,274.73) 

ExhlbM B-3 

3,841,332.80 

35,890.00 

(1.792.8010.25) 

(187.882.24) 

(338,851.73) 

2.500,000.00 
888,271.29 

-4.988.319.87 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 

Total Cunent Assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Furniture, machinery and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

UABlUTIES 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Prepaid sales and fees 

Total Current Liabilities 
Total LlablHUes 

NETPosmON 

Net Investment In capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Statement of Net Poeltlon 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2020 

ExhlbltB", 

Buslness·type Activities • 
Enterprise Funds 

Food Summer 
SeIVlce Enrichment !2!11! 

$ (103,367.26) $ 
75,614.35 
40,940.46 
13,187.53 

416,923.34 
(341,113.03) 

75,810.31 
66,997.84 

124,155.99 
201,370.50 
325,526.49 
325,526.49 

75,810.31 

95,480.37 

95,480.37 

95,480.37 

32,966.96 
32,986.96 
32,968.96 

(312,338.96) 62,491.41 

S 

$ (238,528.65) $ 62,491 .41 $ 

(7,886.91) 
75,614.35 
40,940.46 

108,667.90 

416,923.34 
(341,113.03) 

75,810.31 
184,476.21 

124,155.99 
234,359.46 
356,515.45 
358,515.45 

75,810.31 
(249,847.55) 
(174,037.24) 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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exhibit B-1 
BOARD OF EDUCAnON 

TOWNSltP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
S .... mtnt 01 Re •• nu.I, Explnln, and Changn In Fund Nel POIIUon 

Proprl ... ry Fund. 
Fo. Iha Y_ Enclod Junl 30, 3030 

BuoInna-lypo_1tIn • 
Enl.!!!.I •• Funds 

Food 9ummer 
..§m!B §1l!!s!lm!DI Im!ll 

OperaUng RevonUH: 
Charge. lor service.: 

Dally .alH • ralmburlable programs S 577,023.47 S $ 577.023.47 
DaUy salH • non·ralmbursable programs 901.876.00 901.875.00 
Program lee. 81,220.00 81~0.00 

Total Operating Revsn ... 1,478,898.47 81,220.00 1,680,118.47 

Operallng ExpoMft: 
Cosl of sale.· ralmburaable program. 362.220.75 382.220.75 
COlI of._ • non-rslmbu,.,ble programs 252.525.00 252.525.00 
5aJarie1 703.874.88 49.149.09 752.823.95 
Employe. ben.fIII 224.017.05 3.378.32 227.393.37 
Manageman\ F .. 231.280.00 231.280.00 
Cleenlng. rap,l, end maintenance .. Nice. 182.454.28 182.454.28 
OIher purchesad •• Nlcea 84.010.58 98.098.53 180.107.09 
GenetlloupptIeo 153.903.82 2.074.88 155,978.28 
DepradaUon 15,121.10 15,121.10 

Total OporaUng Expens •• 2,189,187.22 160,698.80 2,319,683.62 
OpetaUng (Lo.s) (690,268.75) (69,478.80) !759,765.3s) 

Nonopl,.tfng Revenu,. : 
5"'" aources: 

511'" .choollunch program 14,287.41 14,287.41 
Federallource.: 

NaIIonaI _lunch program 284,071.30 284,071.29 
Federal bral"'e.1 program 32,590.90 32,590.90 
Food dIattIbutlon PfIIgtIm 120,800.55 120,900.55 

Interest and Investment revenue 
Tolll NonoperaUng Revenues 451,550.15 461,560.15 

Incom. (IotIs) before conlrlbullon. Ind lransfe,. (238,738.80) (89,478.90) (308,215.20) 
Tran.f ... In (out) 

Change In nol poslUon (238,738.80) (69,476.80) (308,215.20) 
Total Net Posltlon-Beglnnlng 2,209.95 131,988.01 134,177.98 

Total Nel PoslUon-Endlng S l238,528.65) S 62,491.41 S l174,037.24) 

Tho Iccomponylng Nota. to Flnlncl.1 S"llm.n" ara In Intagral part ollbl ...... m.nt 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTlVmES 
Racelpls from customars 
Paymanls to employees 
Paymenls for employee benefils 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Statement of Cash Flow. 
Proprietary Fund. 

For the Y.ar Ended June 3D, 2020 

$ 

BUIIlness.type AcUvlUes • 
Entarprl •• Fund. 

Food Sunwnor 
S.rylc. Enrlchm.nt 

1,583,256.59 $ 33,863.98 $ 
(703,674.66) (49,149.09) 
(224,017.05) (3,376.32) 

ExhlbltB-8 

1,617,120.55 
(752,623.95) 
(227,393.37) 

Paymenls to suppliers 11,341,714.99) 198,171.19) 11,439,886.18) 
Nel cash pravldedl(usad for) operating activltIes 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Slate SOUrt:8S 
Federal Sources 

Nel cash provided by non-capltal flnancing activities 

Nellncraase (decrease) In cash and cash equlvatenla 
Balances bealnnlng of year 

Balances-end of year 

RaconclMaUon of operaUng Incorno (10") to nat cash provldedl 
(used for) op.raUng acUvIU .. : 
Operating Income (loll) 
Adjuslmenla to reconcile operating Income (los.) 10 nat cash provided! 

(used for) operating acttvltles: 
0eprecIa1ion and net amortization 
(Incraasa)/Oecraasa In aocounls recelvabla 
(Increese)lDecr&e .. In Inventortes 
Incraase/(Oamase) In aceounls payable 
Incraase/(Oecreaae) In deferred Inflows of resources 

Tolal adjuslmenla 

Net cash (used for) operating activities 

1666,150.31) 

14,287.41 
437,262.74 
451,550.15 

(234,800.16) 
131,232.88 

$ 1103,387.28) S 

S (690,266.75) $ 

15,121.10 
12,087.32 

(20,397.95) 
(94,942.83) 
92~70.80 

4,138.44 

$ 1666,150.31) S 

The accompanying NOM to Financial Statamanta are an Intagral part of thll stalament. 
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1116,832.64) (802,982.95) 

14,287.41 
437,282.74 
451,550.15 

(118,832.64) (351,432.80) 
212,313.01 343,545.89 

95,480.37 $ 17,666.91) 

(69,478.80) S (759,785.35) 

15,121.10 
12,087.32 

(20,397.95) 
(94,942.83) 

147,356.04) 44,914.76 

147,358.04) 143,217.60) 

1118,832.64) S 1802,982.95) 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Assets 

UABILmES 
Payable to student groups 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 3D, 2020 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Il:!W 

$ 154,944.56 

154,944.56 

Payroll deductions and with holdings 
Net Salaries and Wages 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 
Building Rental Account 
Section 125 Plan 
Clearing Account 

Total Liabilities 

NETPOSmON 
Held In trust for unemployment 

claims and other purposes $ 154,944.56 

Exhibit B-7 

Agency 
f!!ml 

$ 3,976,247.22 

3,976,247.22 

775,822.90 
317,489.52 
14,314.44 

2,816,737.52 

43,801.90 
8,080.94 

$ 3,976,247.22 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions: 

Plan member 
Board of Education 

Total Contributions 
Investment eamings: 

Interest 
Net investment eamings 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Unemployment claims 

Total Deductions 
Change In Net Position 

Net Positlon-beglnning 

Net Position-ending 

Exhibit B-8 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

IrlW 

$ 241,468.62 

241,468.62 

757.73 
757.73 

242,226.35 

228,633.30 
228,633.30 

13,593.05 
141,351 .51 

$ 154,944.56 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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BOARP OF EPUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements oflhe Board of Education (Board) of the Township of Hillsborough Scbool District (District) 
bave been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its accounting and financial reporting, Ihe District 
follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant 
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below. 

B. Reporting Eptity 

The Township of Hillsborough School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function 
as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the 
District A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the 
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reoorting Standards, is the degree of oversight 
responsibility maintained by the District Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of 
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for 
fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board exercises 
operating control. The opemtioDS of Ihe District include six elemenla1}', one intermediate, one middle and one senior 
high schools located in Hillsborough. There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity 
under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, Ihe District is not includable in any 
olher reporting entity on the basis of such criteria. 

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and fund 
financial statements (reporting the District's maior funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements 
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District's general and special revenue 
activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's food service and Summer Enrichment programs are 
classified as business-type activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are 
presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which 
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The District's net position 
are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net 
position. The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contjpued) 

C. Basic FinMCial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the District's functions 
and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes, 
tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly 
associated with the function (regular instruction, vocational programs, shldent and inslruction related services, etc.) or 
a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) 
grants while the capital grants column retlects capital-specific grants. 

The net costs (by function or business-type activity are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, hlition, 
interest income, etc.). 

a. The District allocates indirect costs such as on-behalf TP AF Pension Contributions, on-behalf TP AF and 
PERS OPEB Contributions and Reimbursed TP AF Social Security Contributions. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainsbility of the District as an entity and the change in the District', 
net position resulting from the current year's activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund FinApcial Statements 

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund 
is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, 
fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the 
financial statements. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities 
category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expendihlreslexpenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) 
for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. 
The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey School districts must report all 
governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the 
GASB criteria are applied to proprietary funds. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant ACCOunting Policies (Continued) 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Coptinued) 

The following fund types ~ used by the District: 

GOVernmental Fund Types 

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net 
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District 

General Fund - The general fund is the genera! operating fund of the District It is used to account for aU 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain 
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the 
Capital Outlay subfund. 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Outlay in 
this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that General 
Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the 
resources in such cases ~ derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. 

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district 
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to 
fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or 
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment These resources can be transferred from and 
to Current Expense by board resolution and, excluding equipment, with County Superintendent approval. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State 
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local 
appropriations that are legaUy restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for aU financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The 
flDlll1cial resources ~ derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are speciaUy authorized by the voters 
as a separate question on the ballot either during the annua1 election or at a special election. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and 
improvement programs. 

Permanent Fund - A permanent fund is used to account for assets held under the terms of a formal trust 
agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policiel! 1C0ntjnued) 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fund Balances - G,?vernmental Funds 

In the fund financial statemenls, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance: 

Nonspendable - includes amounls that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in form or are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws or other governments, etc.) or by 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund balance is 
reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the Disllict's highest level of decision 
making authority. Commilments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the 
Board of Education. 

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do nol meet the 
definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the Disllict's policy, amounts may be assigned by 
the Business Administrator. 

Unassigned - includes amounts that bave not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned 
to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted 
General Fund Balance Policy described below as unassigned. 

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. When an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is avai1able, the District considers 
restricted funds to bave been spent first. When an expenditure is uncured for which committed, assigned, or 
unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed 
funds, then assigned funds, and final\y unassigned funds as needed. 

Proorietarv Fund Type 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net position, 
financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District: 

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Foods are utilized to account for operations that are fmanced and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. 
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the Disllict has decided 
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D: Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Proprietary Fund Tvoe (Continued) 

The District's Enterprise Fund are comprised of the Food Service Fund and Suminer Enrichment operations. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed asselB used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their 
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been 
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straigbt·line method. The estimated useful live. are as 
follows: 

Food Service Fund: 
Equipment 
Light Trucks and Vehicle 
Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 

Fiducjary Fund Types 

12 Years 
4 Years 
6 Years 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets beld in a trustee or ageacy capacity for others and therefore are not 
available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net position and 
are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 

The District's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type 
(Unemployment Compensation, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being beld 
for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot 
be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the 
government-wide statements. 

E. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the financial statements. It relate. to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the 
measurement of focus applied. 

1. Accrual: 

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary and 
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
wben incUlTed. 
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BOARD OF EPUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDEP JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

2. Modified Accrual: 

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and 
available. "Available" means coUectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures 
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is 
recognized when due. 

3. Revenues: 

SubstantiaUy aU governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to accrual and under 
New JelllCy State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school disllict the entire balance of taxes in the 
amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The Disllict records the entire approved tax 
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. 
Subsidies sod grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as non 
operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient 
recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are 
met Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider 
and deferred revenue by the recipient Program revenues, including tuition revenue, are reported as reductions to 
expenses in the Statement of Activities. 

4. Expenditures: 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the period 
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period of purchase. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC fINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. BudgetslBudgetarv Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt 
service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and, as long as the District budget is 
within State mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget If the budget exceeds State mandated CAPS, 
the voters have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in November. 

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accouoting. The legal level of budgetary control is 
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) 
level of detail as established pW1luant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.1.A.C. 6:23-2.2(f). All 
budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. Appropriation of additional fund balance in 
the amount of$12,197.44 was made during the year ended June 30, 2020. The Board of Education approved the 
following material budgetary appropriation trDnsfers during the school year: 

Account Name 

Regular PrOlJ'BDIJ - Instruction 
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 

U nellst. Expend.-5peech,OT,PT & Related Services 
Purchased Professional- Educational Services 

Undlst. Expend. - Improvement of Inst. Servo 
Supplies and Materials 

Unellst Expend. - Custodlal Services 
Salaries 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services ' 
General Supplies 

Undlst Expend. - Student Transportation Servo 
Conl Services - Aid in Lieu of Payments - NonPublic Students 
Contracted Services (Between Home and School) - Vendors 
ConL Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendors 
Contracted Services (Special Education Students) - Vendors 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
Health Benefits 
Other Employee Benefits 
Unused Sick Payment to TerminatedlRetired Staff 

Amount 

$ (168,795.86) 
(337,656.41 ) 

254,864.31 

(168,999.58) 

239,119.17 
(395,114.37) 
387,474.51 
351,059.13 

(130,000.00) 
557,119.40 
(148,000.38) 
(323,994.94) 

(665,031.68) 
(425,070.80) 
355,270.15 

Formal budgetary integrstion into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the 
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetsry basis of accouoting and 
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or 
more June state aid payments for budgetsry purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. 
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetsry integration in the governmental 
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. Budgets/Budgetary Conlrol(Continuedl 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. Tbe 
grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes 
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does nol 
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports. 

The special revenue fund had no encumbrances at June 30, 2020. 

The reconciliation of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting to the GAAP 
basis of accounting is as foUO\Y3. 

Sourceslinflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "",venu." 

from lb. budgetary comparison .chedul. 
Diffenonce· budget to GAAP: 

The last two Stat. aid payments are noeognized as revenue for budgetary 
purposes, and diff .... from GAAP which does not ","ogni .. Ibis 
",venu. until the subsequent year when lb. Stat. =ognizes 
lb. ",Iated expense in accordance wilb GASB 33. 

Gl1U1t accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 
encumbl1U1ces are recognized as expenditunos. and lb. ",Iated 
revenue ig recognized. 

Total revenues as reported on lb. statement of revenues, expendituros 
and changes in fund balances· governmental funds. 

Uses/outflows of rosourees 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from lb. 

budgetary comparison schedul. 
Diffenonces • budget to GAAP 

Encumbl1U1ces for supplies and equipment ordenod but 
not ","eived are "'POrted in the year Ibe order is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but in lb. year Ibe supplies are ",""ived 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Total expendituros as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expendituros, and changes in fund balances· governmental funds 
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Genml 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 146,120,Soo.32 $ 1,987,084.89 

50,541.00 

$ '46.17104132 $ 1 98798489 

$ 141,193,180.90 $ 1,987,084.89 

S 141 '93180 9Q $ ) 98708482 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note I: Swnmarv of Significant Accounting PoUcies (Coptinued) 

G. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits are cash and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued 
interest Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months are considered 
to be Investments. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or 
less when purchased are stated at cost All other investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they 
may invest in. New Jersey statute IBA:20-37 provides a list ofpennissible investments that may be purchased 
by New Jersey school districts. 

2. Short - tenn Interfund ReceivableslPayables 

Short - tenn interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or 
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year. 

3. Inventories 

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund are recorded as 
expenditure during the year of purchase. 

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the lirst-in-lirst-out (FIFO) 
method. 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of S2,OOO or more are reported at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. 
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on the 
following assets is provided on the straight -line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Land Improvements 
Other Infrastructure 

20-50 years 
5-10 years 

10-20 years 
10-50 years 

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated. 
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Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

G. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued) 

4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

GASB No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the 
beginning of the current year. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation bas historica1ly been 
reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended 
implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006. 

5. Accrued Salaries and Wages 

Certain District employees, who provide services to the District over the ten month academic year, have the 
option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve month year. New Jersey statutes require 
that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate bank account As of June 30, 2020, the 
amount earned by these employees but not disbwsed was $2,816,737.52. 

6. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and 
sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and 
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is 
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate \0 future services, 
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are 
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected \0 be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will 
pay for the compensated absences. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent 
fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the 
fund and government - wide presentations. (See Note XII) 

7. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which bas been received but not yet earned. 
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Note I: Summary ofSjgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

G. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued) 

8. Long - term Obligations 

Long - term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources bave been 
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long - term 
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported 
as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in 
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item 
between the fund and goveroment - wide presentations. 

9. Fund Equity 

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a 
specific future use. Designsted fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources. 

10. Net Position 

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the District-wide financial statements. 
Net invesbnent in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported 
as restricted in the District-wide financial statements wben there are limitations imposed on their usc through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

11. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

12. Allocation of Costs 

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District bas allocated unallocated benefits to various 
programs based on the original budgetary expenditures by program. 
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Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies <Continued) 

H, Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not yet Effective 

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No, 84 "Fiduciary 
Activities", This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December IS, 2019, could have 
significant effects on the entity's financial reporting and the provisions of this statement could require significant 
modifications to disclos= requirements, 

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No, 87 "Leases", This 
statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December IS, 2019, could have significant effects on 
the entity's financial "'Porting and the provisions of this statement could require significant modifications to 
disclosure requirements, 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note III: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues 

A. Deposits and investments 

Deposits 

New Jellley statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jellley which are insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance COrpomtion (FDIC), the Savings Association Insumnce Fund, or by any 
other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jellley Cash Management Fund. 

N.1.S.A. 17:9-4 I et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The 
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds 
are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Public depositories include 
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which 
are fedemUy insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to 
five percent of the avemge daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental 
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the fuJ) amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 

At June 30, 2020 the Township of Hillsborough School District's cash and cash equiValent's amounted to 
$17,010,055.05. Qf this amount, $304,970.85 was covered by federal depository insumoce (F.D.I.C.) and 
$16,760,055.05 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the banks as required by GUDPA. 

At June 30, 2020 the Township of Hillsborough School District had no participation in the State of New 
Jellley Cash Management Fund. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires the disclosure of bank deposits 
that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of a depository financial institution, the Township of Hillsborough School District will oot be able 
to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateraJ securities that may be in the possession of an 
outside party. 

As of June 30, 2020, none of the Township of Hillsborough School District's cash and casb equivalents of 
$17,010,055.05 was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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Note ill: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued) 

A. Dcnosits and InvesWents (Continued) 

Invesbncnts 

New Iersey statutes (N.J,S.A. ISA:2Q-37) pennit the Township of Hi!1sborough School District to purchase 
the following types of securities: 

a. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of all its members the board of education of 
any school district may use moneys which may be in band for the purchase of the following types of securities 
which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the school district; 

(I) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United 
States of America; 

(2) Government money market mutual funds; 
(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality bas issued in accordance with an 

act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, 
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor; 

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations ofloca1 unit or units 
within which the school district is located; 

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of 
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treasury for investment by school 
district; 

(6) Local government investment pools: 
(7) Deposits with the Stat. of New Iersey Cash Mansgement Fund established pursuant to section 1 of 

P.L. 1977, c.281 (C,52:ISA-90A) or 
(S) Agreements for the repurchase of fu\\y collatera!ized securities, if: 

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (I) and (3) of this 
subsection a; 

(b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party; 
(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days; 
(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section I of 

P.L. 1970, c.236 (C.17:941) and for which a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and 
security of collateral is executed. 

The Township of Hillsborough School District had no investments as described in Notel:G,1 at Iune 30, 
2020. 
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Note ill:Detailed Pisclosme Regarding Assets and Reveoues (Continued) 

B. Ioterfuod Receivables and PaV8bles 

As of June 30, 2020, there were 00 interfuod receivables and payables resulting from various interfuod 
transactiona. 

New Jersey statute requires that interest earned 00 the investments in capital projects fund be credited to the 
genera! fund or debt service based 00 Board resolution. In accordance with Board resolution, accrued interest as 
of June 30, 2020 in the amount ofSl,594.l2 was transferred to debt service fund to offset future interest payments 
to bondholders. Accordingly, an interfuod accounts receivable and payable for $0.0 was established in the debt 
service and capital projects funds, respectively. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED IUNE 30. 2020 

Note m: D;IIi1esl Pisc'osure Regarding Aneta and RevenUQ (Continued) 

c. CAPital As. 

Capi1a! .-octlvily fOf the)'<ll ended luno 30, 2020 was as folio",: 

Oovemmental activities: 
Capital a.ssets not beina depreciated: 

Comttuction in Propss S S 1,138,121.74 
Total Capital assets not beiDa depreciated 1,138,121.74 

Land Improvements 4,251,418.18 
Buildinp and Improvemenbl 116,830,543.42 
MachinOly and equipment 5,451,496.60 28,028.68 

Totals at historical cost 126,533,458.20 2s,028.68 

Less aecumuJ.rcd depreciation for: 
Land 1mpn>vcmet11S (2,674,775.44) (196,912.86) 
Buildings and Improvements (50,330,191.90) (2,414,028.86) 
Machinery and Equipment 14,605,155.58) 1347,788.95) 

T obIlacaunulated depreciAtion 157,610,122.92) 12,958,790.67) (I) 
Net capital assets being depreciated 68,923,335.28 12,930,761.99) 

Govemmentalactivities capital assets, net S 68,923,335.28 S (1,792,640.25) 

Business - type activities: 
Equipment S 416,923.34 S 
Less accumulated depreciation p25,991.93) 05,121.10) 

Business - type activities capitaiasscu, net S 90,931.41 S 05,121.10) 

(1) Ilepf«iation cxpenoe was oharied to governmental filn<lion. IS folio",: 
InstJuction S 2,200,395.62 
Special Education 354,489.19 
Other lnstruc:tlon 84,721.19 
Student and In.strutCion Related Services 40,306.82 
School Administrative Services 185,179.92 
Oenml and Business Administrative Services 37,577.93 
l'IInI 0pmIi0ns and Maintenance 29,892.08 
Pupil Transportation 26,227.92 

S 2,958,790.67 
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Adiy,gments 

S S 

S S 

S S 

S S 

Endina 
~ 

1,138,121.74 
1,138,l21.74 

4,251 ,418.11 
116,830,543.42 

5,479,525.28 
126,561,486.88 

(2,871,748.30) 
(52,744,220.76) 
14,952,944.53) 

160,568,913.59) 
65,992,573.29 

67,!lM95.03 

416,923.34 
1341 ,113.03) 

75,810.31 



BOARP Of EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP Of HQ I 580801 IOH 

NOTES TO 865IC fINANCIAl . STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENpED nINE 3D 2020 

Nole IV: Pct!jItd Dbclpms ReMPS Ljabiljlin yd EmenwJF.mcadjtuR!l 

A OpmtIg"n" 

The DisbiCl hu commitmc:nlllO Icue copying and compu!er tqUipmc:nt aDd buse.t uncia" operating leases which apire in 2024. 

Tolll opcntina1easo pI)1nCDts made dwing the year ended JWlO 30, 2020 wcra SI,69',189.86. Fulurtl minimum lease payments Its u follows: 

X-fndnd 6mmIII 

1 .... 30.2021 S 1.667,2U78 
Juae30,2022 1.543.551.38 
1 ... 30.2023 793.066.75 
June 30, 2024 603~2H5 
JIIIICI 30. lOll 280)39.22 

Total filturc minimum lcaso paymcnes S 4,1J'7,733.!8 

8. Lmls· Imm I il~Dilil1 

Lema. Term liability acU~ty for chc year mded JUDO 30, 2020 was u folowl: 

Besinnin. Issued or Eadinl 
IlIIwI ~ fIi4 IIIIID<l 

Oovemmeatal ~vitics: ..... -r .... _ 
Soria\\Ioods s 6.710.000.00 S S <2.'00.000.00) S 4,210.000.00 

...... - ApcctocnIs 
12,995,465.66 (!51~7lJ~ 12~42,O92.l1 

r .... debt payobl. 19,705,465.66 !l~51~71.l5) (I) 16,451,092.31 

0Iber Iilbilitics: 
Compensated absences 2.902,297.41 608.441.14 (440.758.90) 3.069.979.65 
Capilall ..... 405,679.36 (132,897.94) 272,781 .42 

r ............ IiabiU1i .. 3.lj!7,976.77 608,441.14 (513,656.84) (2) 3~2,761.07 --luna • lerm liabilities S 23,013,442.43 S 608,441.14 S (l,827,D30.l9) S 19,794,853.38 

(I) Paid byc\cbt oeMCG fund 
(2) Paid by pcro1 fund 
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-. 
DuoWilhiD 
llDI..Yal 

S 2,490.000.00 
591,866.07 

3,083,866.07 

180,290.73 
135~13 .02 

1Il,S03.74 

S 3)99)69.81 
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TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note N:Detailed Pisclosure Regarding Liabilities and ExpenseslExpendi!ures !Continued) 

B. Long - Tenn Liabilities (Continuedl 

I. Bonds Payable 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the votet! of the municipality through referendums. All 
bonds are retired in serial installments within the stallltory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are 
general obligation bonds. 

Serial Bonds outstsnding as ofJune 30, 2020 consisted of the fonowing: 

DescriRti!!!l ~ Due Ma1!!!:iri Amount Issued 
Rate pate ~ 

Refunding of 200 1 4.25-
5.375% 10/1 2021 $25,3000,000.00 

Refunding of 2007 3.87% 9/27 2021 9,09~,OQO.QO 

~ J~ J2~,gWl,gQ 

Principal and interest duc on serial bonds outstanding is as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 

2021 
2022 

Principal 

$2,490,000.00 
1,720,000.00 

$4 2 J Q OOOeOQ 

58 

~ 

$168,474.00 
46,225.00 

$214699.00 

A!!!ol!l!t 
Qytsynding 

$ 3,440,000.00 

770,QQQ.OQ 
S ~ ~JQ gcg.gg 

Total 

$2,658,474.00 
1,766,225.QQ 

$1.424,69900 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note N: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and ExpenseslEXPendi!ures (Continued) 

B. Long - Tean Liabilities (Continued) 

2. Temporary Notes 

There were no Temporary Notes outstanding as of June 30, 2020. 

3. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued 

There were authorized but not issued bonds as of June 30, 2020 in the amount ofS35,519,249.00. 
(Sec Note XN.) 

4. Capital Leases Payable 

The District is leasing buildings energy savings, bus, computer and maintenance equipment totaling 
$16,761,266.72 under capital leases. All capital leases are for terms of nineteen years. The following is a 
schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020. 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum Lease payments 

59 

Amount 

S 1,076,845.48 
1,089,892.63 

970,900.35 
992,334.33 

1,014,241.69 
1,036,632.22 
1,059,516.42 
1,082,905.80 
1,106,811.28 
1,131,244.23 
1,156,216.51 
1,181,739.00 
1,207,825.02 
1,231,337.46 

S 15,338,442.42 
2.823.568.69 

$ 12,514,873.73 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note V: Detajled Djsclosure Regarding Fund Equity 

A. Calculation of Excess Surplus 

In accordance with N.J.SA 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L.2004, C.73 (SI701},the designation for Reserved 
Fund Balanco-Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational 
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIF A). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General 
Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as 
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The exceSS fund balance at June 30, 2020 is 
$5,679,179.53. The reserved fund balance of$2,387,097.41 has been appropriated in the fiscal year 2020-2021 
and 53,292,082.12 will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2021-2022. 

B. Capjta! Reserve Account 

A capital reserve account was established by the Townsbip of Hillsborough School District Board of Education 
by inclusion ofSl.OO on October 16,2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in 
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included 
in the general fund annual budget. 

Funds placed in the capits! reserve account are restricted to capits! projects in the district's approved Long Range 
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in 
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may 
also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters bas been obtained either by a 
separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant 
to NJ.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.13, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the 
local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. 

The June 30, 2020 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2020 is 
$7,000,000.00. 

C. Deficit Net Position 

The Food Service Enterprise Fund has a cumulative net position deficit of $(236,528.65) as of June 30, 2020. 
This deficit will be provided for by the 2020-2021 General Fund Budget and improved profitability. 
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Note VI: Pension PIB!!.! 

Description of Systems 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF H!LLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Substantially all of the Board's employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit public 
employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
(TP AF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program 
(pCRP). These systems are sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The 
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost sharing plan with special funding 
situations as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on hehalf of the 
Board and the system's other related non-contributing employers. The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple· 
employer defined benefit plan. The DCRP is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer defined contribution plan. 

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J. SA 
43:l5A to provide coverage including post.retirement health care to substantially all full time employees of the State 
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State· 
.administered retirement system. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by NJ.SA 43:l5A. PERS provides retirement, death and dillllbility 
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisiODll ofPERS. 

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to lune 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Iune 28,2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1155111 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier I and 2 
members upon reacbiog age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reacbiog age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1160* of 
finaI average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reacbiog age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reacbiog age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of 
service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires 
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. 
Tier I members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 
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Note VI: Pension Plans (Continued> 

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TP AF) was established in 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 18:66, to 
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full-time public school employees in the 
State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits 
and 25 for post-retirement health care coverage. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability 
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions ofTPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own conbibutions and, after 
three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the conbibutions. In Ibe case of 
death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts. 

The following represents the membership tiers for TP AF: 

Tier Definition 
I Members wbo were enrolled prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 20 I 0 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 20 I 0 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members wbo were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1I55ib of finaJ average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier I and 2 
membera upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1I60ib of 
finaJ average saJary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or 
more years of service credit Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each monlb that a member retires 
prior to Ibe retirement age for hislher respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 
years of service credit and have not reached Ibe service retirement age for the respective tier. 

The Defined Conbibution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July I, 2008 under the provisions of 
Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA 43:15C-I et seq .. ). The DCRP is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined conbibution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a 
tax-sheltered, defined conbibution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and 
benefit provisions are established by NJSA 43: 15C-I et seq .. 

According to the state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by Ibe State of New Jersey 
should any retirement systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions 
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required 
supplementary information of each of Ibe above systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey 
Division of Pensions and Benefits website at www.state.nj.U41treasury/oensions. 
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Note VI: Pension Plans (Continued) 

Contribution Requirements 

The contribution policy for PERS is set by NJ.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by active members and contributing 
employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the employer. The employer's pension 
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfi.uIded accrued liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the employer's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount. 

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by NJ.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and 
contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State's pension 
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount wbich includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the State's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount. 

The District's total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $76,765,547.23 and covered payroll was 
$57,513,083.00 for TPAF, $10,189,864.00 for PERS and SI,947,520.52 for DCRP. Contributions to the PERS, 
PFRS and the DCRP for the last three years made by the employees and Townsbip of Hillsborough School District 
were as follows: 

Percent of Percent of Percent of 
Covered Covered Covered 

IfAE Em2lI fSRS fm2!! ~ fm2lI 

Employees 6/30118 $4,417,653.53 7.41 % $765,886.38 7.46% $ 98,439.43 5.50% 
6130119 4,559,566.24 7.54% 804,535.87 7.550/0 108,297.66 5.50% 
6/30/20 4,336,579.82 7.54% 768,600.98 7.54% 107,113.63 5.50% 

District 6/30118 N/A N/A% $1,317,652.06 12.83 % $ 53,694.17 3.00% 
6/30/19 N/A N/A% 1,463,879.73 13.75% 59,071.37 3.00% 
6/30/20 N/A N/A% 1,445,623.00 14.19 % 58,412.29 3.00% 

StateofNJ 6130118 $ 8,365,678.00 14.04% N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6/30/19 11,017,473.00 18.22 % N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6130120 12,462,470.00 21.670/0 N/A N/A 0/0 N/A N/A 0/0 

In accordance with NJ.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $4,213,959.66 during the year 
ended June 30, 2020 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on 
their base salaries. This amount and the State of New Jersey's Contribution to the TPAF and PERS for OPEB have 
been included in the basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison scbedule - General Fund as a revenue 
and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24. 

63 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STA TEMENIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System 

Summary of Significant Accounting PoUcles 

For pwposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the liduciary net position of the PERS and additions 
to/deductions from PERS liduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
PERS. For this purpose, benelit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benelit terma. Investments are reported at fair value. 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of 526,645,458.00 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of aU participating employers, actuariaUy determined. At June 30, 2019, the 
District's proportion was 0.1478784786%, which was an increase of 1.28% from its proportion measured as of June 
30,2018. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of 51,774,235. At June 30, 2020, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resoun:es and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following 
sources: 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between District contributions and 
proportionate share of 
contributions 

District contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

64 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 

$ 

478,251 
2,660,647 

1,399,384 

1.445,623 
5983995 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

s 

$ 

117,708 
9,248,554 

420,609 

35,432 

9822,303 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note VII: PubHc Employees Retirement System (Continued) 

$1,445,623 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2020, the plan measurement date is June 
30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension Hability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30. 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Total 

Actuarial Assumptions 

S (769,399) 
(2,495,917) 
(2,228,709) 
(1,046,494) 

(107.455) 
$ (6 647 973) 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

invesbnent rate of return: 

2.75% 
3.25% 

2.00% - 6.00% (based on years of service) 
3.00% - 7.00% (based on years of service) 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median income Employee mortality table 
with an 82.2% adjusbnent for males and 101.4% adjusbnent for females, and with future improvement from the base 
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below· 
Median income Healthy Retiree mortaHty table with a 91.4% adjusbnent for males and 99.7% adjusbnent for females, 
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to 
value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% 
adjUSbnent for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 20 lOon 
a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July I, 2014 to June 30,2018. 
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Note V1I:Public Employees Retirement System (Continued) 

In accordance with State statute, the long-tenn expected rate of retwo on plan investments (7,00% at June 30, 2017) 
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division 
of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 are SllIIIDIlIrizcd in the following 
table: 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Target RealRste 
AsstClass Allocatign ofl!&!!!m 

Absolute return/risk mitigation 5,00% 5.51% 
Cash equivalents 5,50% 1.00% 
U,S Treasuries 3,00% 1.87% 
Investment grade credit 10,00'10 3,78% 
Public high yield 2,50% 6,82% 
Global diversified credit 5,00'10 7,10% 
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6,60% 
Debt related private equity 2,00'10 10,63% 
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6,61% 
Private real estate 2,50"10 11.83% 
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23% 
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19% 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00% 
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64% 
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019. This single blended 
discount rste was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a 
municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AAlAa or higher. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on 70 % of 
the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for 
the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2057, and the municipal bond 
rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 
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Note VIl:Pubiic Employees Refuement System (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The fonowing presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 6.28%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (5.28%) or I-percentage point higher (7.28%) than the current 
rate: 

Current 
1% Discount 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(5.28%) (6.28%l £z.280/21 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability $33,658,543 26,645,458 20,738,160 

Note Vill: Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund ITPAF) 

Summary of Signiflcaut AccountIng PoUcl ... 

related to pensions, and pension expense, informatiou about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Pension and 
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordsnce with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a 
reduction for State pension support provided to the District The amount recognized by the District as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension 
liability that WII5 associated with the District were as fonows: 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

$ 

336,741.582 

1336 741.582 

The net pension liability WII5 measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability to calculate the net pension 
liability WII5 determined by an actuarial valuation as of that dste. The District's proportion of the net pension liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the 
District's proportion was 0.00"10, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. 
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Note VIll:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund ITPAFl(Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the State (for the District) recognized pension expense ofS19,861,919 and revenue 
of $19,861,919 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2019, the State (for the District) reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TP AF from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Cbanges of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between State 

contributions associated with the District and 
proportionate share of contributions 

State's contribution associated with the District 
subsequent to th~ measurement dete 

Total 

S 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

6,587,702 
47,782,001 

925,195 

12.462.470 
S67 757 368 

Deferred 
lnIlows 

Of 
Resources 

$ 1,167,798 
93,947,065 

894,248 

152,420 

$ 96161 531 

SI2,462,470 reported as deferred outflows of resourees related to pensions resulting from State contributions 
associated with the District subsequent to the measurement dete (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2020, 'the 
plan measurement dete is June 30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30. 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 
Total 
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$ (1,494,686) 
(3,864,269) 
(3,459,890) 
(6,674,255) 

(13.066,252) 
(13.180.587) 

$ (41,739 938) 
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Note VID:Teachers Pensjon and Annuity Fund ITPAFlIContinued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30,2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Inveshnent rate of return: 

2.75% 
3.25% 

1.55% - 4.45% (based on yem of service) 
2.75% - 5.65% (based on yem of service) 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality table 
with an 93.9% adjushnent for males and 85.3% adjusbnent for females, and with future improvement from the base 
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above­
Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7% adjUShnent for malea and 99.6% adjUShnent for 
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates 
were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjushnent for males and 
100.3% adjushnent for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. 
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July I, 2015 to June 30,2018. 
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Note Vlll:Teachers Pension and AnDuitv Fund ITPAf)(Cogtinuedl 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2019) is 
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of 
Pensions and Benefits, Ibe board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined 
using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and infJation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset aUocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the 
foUowing table: 

Discount Rote 

Asset Class 
Risk Mitigation Strategies 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment Grade Credit 
High Yield 
Private Credit 
Real Assets 
Real Estate 
US Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 
Emerging Markets Equity 
Private Equity 

Target 
A11QCation 

3.00% 
5.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 
2.00% 
6.00% 
2.50% 
7.50% 

28.00% 
12.50% 

6.50010 
12.00% 

Long-Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of&n!m 

4.67% 
2.00% 
2.68% 
4.25% 
5.37% 
7.92% 
9.31% 
8.33% 
8.26% 
9.00% 

11.37% 
10.85% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30, 2019. This single blended 
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a 
municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonda with an average rating of AAlAa or higher. The 
projection of cash floW! used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the cwrent member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the 
contribution rate in the mnst recent fiscal year. The State contributed 70% of the actuariaUy determined contributions. 
Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2054, and the municipal bond rate was applied to 
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 
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Note VIll:Teachern Pension and Annuity Fund ITPAF)(Contjnue4) 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 5.60%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (4.60%) or I-percentage point higher (6.60%) than the current 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(4.60%) 

$397,085,673 

Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(5.60%) 

336,741,582 

1% 
Increase 
(6.60%) 

286,668,109 

State Health Benefit State Fund - Local Education Active (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) - N.J.SA 
52: 14-17 .46a established the School Employees Health Benefits Program Fund which provides medical coverage \0 
qualified active education participants. Also, education employees are eligible for the Prescription Drug Program 
coverage after 60 days of employment 

GenerallnCormadon about tbe OPED Plan 

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan (Local Education Retired Plan) is a multiple­
employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are 
accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. The Local 
Education Retired Plan provides medica~ prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and the 
covered dependents of local education employees. The State also olfelll dental care \0 retirees; however, since dental 
benefits are completely paid for by the retirees, there is no OPEB liability for these benefits. 

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State in accordance with N.J.SA 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32(, the State provides employer­
paid coverage to employees who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service 
credit in, or retires on a disability pension from one or more of the following plans: TP AF, PERS, PFRS, or ABP. 
Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postemployment medical coverage who have less than 
20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of dleir health care 
coverage in retirement provided dley retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit The percentage of die 
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on die retiree's annual retirement benefit 
and level of coverage. 

Snmmary of SIgnificant Acconnting PolicIes 

For purposes of measuring the liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and expense 
associated with die State's requirement to contribute to die State Health Benefits Loca1 Education Retired Employees 
Plan (OPED), information about OPED's fiduciary net position and additions toldeductions from OPEB's fiduciary 
net position have been determined on die same basis as they are reported by OPED. For this purpose, OPED 
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value, except for money market investments and participating interest ... arning investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost 
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Note IX:Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits <continued) 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability that reflected a 
reduction for State OPEB support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the District were as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

$ 

217,640.391 

$217,640,391 

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability to calculate the net OPEB 
lisbility was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarial\y determined. At June 30, 2018, the District's 
proportion was 0.00"10, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the State (for the District) recognized OPEB expense ofS10,638,880 and revenue 
of $10,638,880 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2018, the State (for the District) reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on OPEB plan investments 
Changes in proportion 
Stale contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 
Total 

72 

s 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

14,233 

4,997,508 
5.011 741 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of 
Resources 

$ (21,126,861) 
(48,785,206) 

(997,745) 

$ no 209,8) 2) 
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Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The collective total OPES liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was detennined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July 1,2017, which was rolled forward to June 30,2018. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 

Thereafter 

2.5% 

TPAF/ABP 

1.55-4.55% 
based on years 
of service 

2.00-5.45% 
based on years 
ofseMce 

2.15-4.14% 
based on age 

3.15 - 5.15% 
based on age 

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee MaielFemale 
mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the centnll year using the MP-2017 
scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant 
MaielFemale mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the centnll year using the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Disabled MaielFemale mortality 
table with fully generational improvement projections from the centnll year using the MP-2017 scale. 

The actuarial assumptions used the lune 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies 
for the periods lu1y 1, 2012 -lune 30,2015 and luly 1,2011 - June 30, 2014 forTPAF and PERS, respectively. 

Disco"nt Rate 

The discount rate for Iune 30, 2018 and 2017 was 3.87% and 3.58%, respectively. This represents the municipal 
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20·Bond Municipal Bond Index, which 
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AAlAa or higher. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the new OPES liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.87%, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I·perceatage point lower (2.87%) or I·percentage point higher (4.87%) than the curreat 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of the aet pensioa 
liability 

1% Decrease 
(2.87%) 

$257,294,470 

73 

Curreat 
Discount 

Rate 
(3.87%) 

$217,640,391 

1% Increase 
(4.87%) 

$186,118,880 
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Note IX:Health Begefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued> 

Health Care Trend 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.8% and decreases 
to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after eight years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.50/0. 
For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after seven 
years. For the Medicate Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% 
and will continue in all future years. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healtheare cost trend ratf!J 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as wbat the District's 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates tbat are 
I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB 
liability 

Note X: Deferred Compensation Plan 

1% Decrease 

$179,892,406 

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rstes 

$217,640,391 

1% Increase 

$267,563,397 

The Board offers its employees a deCerred compensation plan (the ''Plan'') created in accordance with Intemal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency or upon death to their beneficiaries. The 
plan administrators are as follows: 

Equitable 
Lincoln Investment 
Fidelity 
Legend 

The Prudential 
Siracusa Plans 
Oppenheimer 

All amounts of compensation deCerred under this plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all 
income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made availsble to the employee or other 
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Township of Hillsborough School District (without being restricted 
to the provisions of benefits under the Plan) subject only to the claims of the Township of Hillsborough School 
District's general creditors. Participants' right under the Plan are equivalent to those of general creditora of the 
Township of Hillsborough School District in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each 
participant 

The maximum amount of deferred compensation for any participant for any taxable year shall not exceed the lesser oC 
$19,500.00 or 100 percent of the participant's includible compensation Cor the taxable year except as provided by the 
limited catch-up provision which may effect a participant's last three taxable years ending before a participant attains 
normal retirement age as defined by plan. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2020, the employees' contributions to the plan were $2,774,487.69, and 
$2,497,128.57, respectively. 
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New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District bas elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment 
Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the District is required to 
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for beilefits paid to its former employees and charged to its 
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. 

The following table is a summary of district contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the state for 
benefits paid and the ending balance of the district's trust fund for the current and previous two years: 

fillcal Ye!!{ District Employee Amount Ending 
C!!Otrilaiti!!M Contribulio!ll! Reiml!!!!Sd Balance 

2017·2018 $ .0- S 203,94S.88 S 233,117.90 SllS,274.32 
2018·2019 ·0· 204,091.99 128,721.92 141,3S1.S1 
2019·2020 .(). 241,468.62 131,681.S4 IS4,944.S6 

The Township of Hillsborough School District is exposed to various risks of los8 related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Board Association Insurance Company (the "Group''). 

The Group is both an insured and self·administered group of school districts established for the purpose of providing 
certain low-cost workers' compensation coversge for member school districts in order to keep local property taxes at 
a minimum. The District pays an annual assessment to the Group and should it be determined that payments received 
by the Group are deficient, additional assessments may be levied AddilionaJ\y, the Group maintains a contract of 
excess insurance with a commercial reinsuror to secure the payment ofbcnefits. 

The Township ofHi1!sborough School District continues to carry commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of 
loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Note XII:Compensated Absences 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for 
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and DOt contingent on a specific event that is outside 
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 
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Note Xll:Compensated Absences(ConL) 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's personnel policies. In 
the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for 
ordinary sick pay upon retirement at the rate of one days pay for every five sick days and begin vesting with the 
employee and limited by certain maximums as follows: 

Adminisb'ators 
Supervisors 
Teachers 
Office Staff 
Library Staff 
Custodial and Maintenance 
Transportation 
Mechanics 

Vesting 
Numbcrof 

Years of Service 

20 
20 
20 
15 
15 
15 
15 
15 

Maximum 

$13,500 
13,500 
13,500 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 

In the district·wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than DOC year are 
reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the 
benefits accru. to employees. As of June 30, 2020, no liability existed for compensated absences in the Food Service 
Fund. 

Note XIII:Contingent Liabilities 

The Township of Hillsborough Board of Education is a defendant in several lawsuits, none of which is unusual for a 
Board of Education of its size. Additional liabilities, if not covered by insurance, should not be material in amount 

Note XIV:Subscoueot Events 

The Township of Hillsborough School District has evaluated subsequent events through September 2, 2020, the date 
which the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for disclosure or 
adjustment except for the following: 

Serial bonds were issued as of July 31,2020 in the amount ofS35,4l6,OOO.00 with a coupon rate of2.000% .. 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

78 



79 



80 



M)MD "" ElM.EA1lI* 
'-Co' 

~OI''''.~ -----fIIaIv_ ........... _ 

v_ - - ..... _to - - - - .-
"P:: ....... I .. ~~ 
~Ioo..l.u.v... ...... - ....... oao.,OD-5IS, • " ...... , ..- , " ,751.DD , tn,15UO , 
TuIIan.OIWLEM ........... • ..... 

_ . ...., 
'77,aU..oo 11,111l.OD ......... ......... ..... 

T .... IDc.-.V. ..... DIIf.-~ 
_ ...... .- . ....... ."""'" .......... 

T ..... c:o..r ......... DII&.· ..... _.- ........ _ .. _ .. _ ... 
T ........ CIID'~o.ylli\lllldl 

_ ...... '03,Z$T. ......... • -..;m.,D . ....... 24.10 
T ... ID,..... .......... ~-v... .... -- II!! '!l!2 I!nl~!!J l5l3!!!)4 l~~:!!! ... 

T .. " .... ', .... -~ 2' ....... tD871SM 2.251--'4 !'ZIIIl!!2D .7" 
u.e.t.~-""''''' - DIO-2t~UIO 1151,1D7.GD ",.." 'JlZ5,a..74 1IZ,'.tUI IU.-US 
~~_T"""a.w. ~ .... ..... ... (11,111 ......... ....,. 4,'42.55 
a...~ ...... ( ___ ...t.f) 

~- ......... ,.,.... 4.fru, 2O.Z2'U' --- ~- 21,7Il..00 ." 2IIM·2 24 !!I!! 15 !.!I!.t7 
f_' S ..", .-- lJI5ZJI,UD 71J1111.15 1.12U'US _ .... 71U1 _'4'M1.27 
u.II&~.~,PT&"""''''''''' 
...... oIDNr ........... a.r 1ICIII-2,.,111 
~ ........... -~~ ----- .... ,-

T ............ ~_~"& ............. 
UIIdkt.~ - ..., ...... ...,. .......... a.rr. 
....... OIW",........." ~r_1011 ....................... -~ ..... ~, .... --- ~, .... '''''u.IIIt. E.IJML ........................ &n ..... 

u.....~_auw.-
..... oIe»w"........ .. ~ .. 104 
........ ~ .. CMricIII ......... .......... 

00 --- ~.., 

.- T .......... ~.~ 
u.dIIt.lbfieM..CIIiId ....,. T_ 

...... 010..............,. ... ~ ..... 2,2t''-'' ~-... ........... ......... ........ 

.......... ~ .... a.nc.I ........ ~ .. ,D5 ......... ......... ' ...... U8 ........ '..-00 
,....,~Prof._T .. ...,... .... , .... - -- ........ , ..... _ ... -

~- II.!!!!. _gDD " ...... ~." 
T .......... ~_QlW ..... T_ ,,.,.., ... 1I2!Wv ?.t&u,UC "115.4$ 
UMIIIL~ ..... , ............ 
..... tJI~oI~ ODIJ.22t-.tIZ ......,... 112,7211.&1) .',.SUI .... , .... 13,DIt.l1 
...... fIlOllet ............... OIIIN:tl·1CM n.",... CU ....... ,,,-7D tU1t.aD 47,171.7D 
SIIIIt."'SeeJanda.bl ..... ..... ... 1G..4OI.DD """"" , ........ 15t,10U1 ".275AD 
~PtoJ.~ ..... ...." .... II ...... (SU01.11) - ........ ~ .. _ ... - .,..".... ~t~:!!! U!!!!!~ II!! tSol..Q 'StaDt 'm' .• ' 

TaQI UIIIIIL iEqIIM. -11 ... . _"' .......... ,., 112.OD gn_m 3217.111.1' 3_111" 1504"'1 
u.e.t.E..-..,.. .............. u.., - ....... , .. _ ..... 

' ,438.22 ... ....... ... ,.... , ... --- .......... !l1OD!!! aBI'!!!) as,1111U1D 12~!! ~11!'5 
TaQlu.IIIi&.~."""""''''''''''' ....... W .-n .. 24M! _~nu, 

u.u..~ ................ , ............. ....... "''*-................ ....... ... , .. .-.. - ....., .. .. .... 
~ ............ ~~ ..... ......... .... .... ,""4II,J:3) ...... ' c..rPurcM.d...,..(4OIHOCI-'-J ......... 1!'4':!! 11,1.':&11 JIII1!!.i!!: 

T ................... ....,...,......,' .......... _ZNJ_ "'-.., 'M.''''. 114""_ 



82 



83 



84 



REVENUES: 

S .. te Sourcos 
Federal Sourceo 
Local Soun;os 

To .. IR .. anu .. 

EXPENDITURES: 
h\ltnlctlon 

Po,.onol SeIVI ... - SlIarie. 
other Purchased Service. (400-500 ._) 

General Supplle. 
Textbooks 
other Objeclo 

To .. lln.trueUon 

Supp.rt SOlVle .. 
Personal SefVIc:es - Se_. 
Po,..nol SelVl ... - Employee Bo .. n .. 
Purchased Prolesslanal and Technical SeIVIces 
Purchased Prolesslonal - EducaUonal services 
OIhor Purcha.ed 5ervIcn (400-SOO .orie.) 

Supplies and MaI_ 

To .. 1 Supp.rt Sorvleo. 

T ... I Exponclllum 

T ... IOuUl .... 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
Budga"ry Comparison Schedu" 

Spoelol Rovonuo Fund 
For lito Flocal VOlt Ended Juno 30, 2020 

OrIginal Budget 

ll!I!!!W ImOS!I!) 

$ 24,613.00 $ 23,195.00 
1,667,749.00 741,126.00 

126,281.20 

S 1,712.382.00 S 890,582.20 

S 1S2,340.oo S 18,31S.oo 
1,431,208.00 222,056.00 

34,129.00 210,491.79 
24,813.00 (20,S02.00) 

5,200.00 
1.842,290.00 43S,560.79 

70,072.00 (23,275.00) 
104,57S.OO 
187,432.00 
38,271.00 
67,890.41 

82,328.00 

70,072.00 45s,021.41 

1,712,382.00 690.S82.20 

S 1,712,382.00 S 890,582.20 
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ExhlbftC-2 

Flnat Varlanco 

~ ElDIllg Actual 

$ 47,606.00 $ 33,462.74 $ 14,345.26 
2,426,875.00 1,909,971.65 516,903.31 

128,281.20 43.850.48 82,810.74 

S 2.602,1144.20 S 1,967,084.69 S 61S,859.31 

S 170,85S.oo $ 185,178.00 $ M79.oo 
1,653,284.00 1,597,S55.08 5S,706.92 

244,820.79 50,256.70 184,384.09 
4,111.00 4,111.00 
5,200.00 S,200.00 

2,On,850.79 1,817,096.78 260,752.01 

46,797.00 2,722.50 44,074.50 
104,575.00 98,322.00 8,253.00 
167,432.00 21,995.38 1BM38.84 
38.271.00 24,403.88 11,887.12 
87,690.41 24,445.00 63,245.41 

62,328.00 97.37 62,230.83 

526.093.41 189,B8B.ll 355,107.30 

2,602,1144.20 1,967,084.89 815,859.31 

S 2,602,1144.20 $ 1,967,084.89 S 615,859.31 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Required Supplementary Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schadul. 

NotetoRSI 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note A - explanation 01 DIII .... nces ~n Budgatary Inflows and Outflows and 
GAAP Revenue. and expenditures 

Sourceslinnowa 01 re.ources 
Actual amounls (budgetaly baaIs) "ravenue" 

General 

ElIIllI 

from Ihe budgelary comparison schedule [C-l&C-2) $ 146,120,500.32 
Dilfefencs - budget 10 GAAP: 

The iaat Slats aid paYl118l1t Is recognized as revenue fot budgelary 
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize Ihls 
ravenue untilihe subsequent year when !he State recognizes 
Ihe related expense In accordance wllh GASS 33. 50,541.00 

Grant accounUng budgelary basis dlffars from GAAP In Ihat 
encumbrancas are recognized as expenditures, and Ihe related 
revenue Is recognized. 

Total revenues as reporiad on the slllllIment 01 revenues, expenditlJres 
and changes In fund balancas - govemmental funds. [B-2) 

UsHioutllows 01 resources 

$ 146,171,041.32 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from Ihe 
budgetary comparison schedule [C-l&C-2) $ 141,193,160.90 

Dlfferences- budget to GAAP 
Encumbrences for suppl1ea and equipment ordered but 

not received are reported In Ihe yaar Ihe order Is placad for 
budgetary purposes, but In Ihe year Ihe supplies are recalved 
for financial reportJng purposes. 

Transfers to and from olher funds are presented as outflows of 
budgetaly resources but ere not expenditlJras 
for finsnclal reporting purposes. 

Net transfers (outftows) to general fund 

Total expenditures a. reported on Ihe statement 01 revenues, 
expendltlJrea, and changes In fund balances - govemmental funds 

87 

[8-2) $ 141,193,180.90 

Exhlbltc-3 

Spacial 
Revenue 

ElIIllI 

$ 1,967,084.89 

S 1,967,084.69 

$ 1,987,084.89 

$ 1,967,084.69 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PARTll 

88 



Section L 

SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS 
(GASB68) 
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BOARD OF EDUCA110H 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

8chldull Of the DI,trler. Proportionate Sh,l'II oflhe Net Pinslon Uablllty. PERS 

FI,el' V.lr End!!!l JunilOI 
202l 2021 1Ol1 

C1slrld', propct1lon allhI nit pension IIbiIIy 

OI.IrICI'. propGItIonltt shere of IhII nit pension 81bHlty 

DtI*f' C'D'tIM .mptoyee p~ 

ClsltlcC', proportlOnate"'lnI 0I1tl1 net pension liability II I _~b ___ 
Plan ftdudary net pollllon II • plfQlUgt 01 the klllll penIIon -

S 

S 

fIIell V.lr Endl!lll JunelOI 
20t. 2017 

DI.trICI'. propanlan oIlhe ".t pen.lon nlbGIly 0. 1401700702% 0.101403259541% 

Dblrkt'l ~ ..... ofh nit P'II"'an a.biIty S 32,m,352.DO S 41,580,532.00 

Olslrlct', covnd employee Plyrol S 10.271 ,05100 S SI.IIt!,309.oa 

DistrICt', prapotGonlll shlnl 01 the ntl pen.lon ' .. bUlly ... 
petalnttge of 1\1 CDVlI1Id employ" Plyrall 317.88% 41718t. 

Pl,n ftdudary nil po,ltIon ... p..cantagl of thl talIl penllon 

, ... '" .'0% 4O.1ft 

Noll: ThIs ,chldull do .. not canlain ten rem oIlnformalion II GASS No. 66 Mllmpltmlnttd dul'lng nlc.l 
year_lid Jur.30, 2015. 
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2011 

0.13115V015252% 

S 31,.33:1i,M.DO S 

S G.64e,76Q.OO S 

324.83% 

47.9:21\ 

1020 2011 

0.1"781847M% O.l4000Q2'"", 

2e,845,4S8.00 S 28,748,487.00 

10.1811,11&4_00 S 10,850,004.00 

2e,4Q% 289.94% 

58.27% 53.150% 

2011 ,.14 

0.1327011"81% 0,13423601500% 

2·U45,372.00 S 25,1555,348.00 

1,534,na.OO S 1,215.8&15.00 

28O.S8140 270215"" 

....... 48.72% 



BOARD OF EOUCATtON 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

StMehd. of DlIb1ct Contrlbutlon .. PERS 

Fiaul Yu, End!!!g June 30. 
Z1IZ3 2022 2021 

C __ ...--
$ 

Conltibutlonlln rel,Don to the contnldually ltlqulred contrlbuUon 

Conb'lbu1lon d.fldency/(exeell) S 

Obtnc:t. CCMIf'Id IIfTIPIoyH p8)'RII $ 

ContriWlonl as I percenClge of covered employee payroll 

F'-c!! Yur Endtna June 30. 
2t)1I 2017 

Con_"""""" C<>nIIlI>utIon S 1,317.8S2.00 S 1,253,6711.00 

C_~_ ..... ___ i113t71652.08) "1~678.~ 

Conb'lbutlon dend.nc:y/(.xeall) $ S 

Dlatttcr, eoverld .mploye. p.yroII S 10,211,OSl.00 • 9,982,3OB.00 

Contttb\IIonl ., • perc::en&IOe of covwed employee payroll 12.83" 12.58% 

Note: This schedule does nol conl.1n len yea ... of InformaUon'l GASB No. 61 was Impl.mented during IIscaI 
yiIIlt ended.kl'\li 30, 2015, 
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2011 

S 1,200,105.00 S 

11 1200,lOS.00) 

S S 

S U46,780.00 $ 

12.44'" 

2020 2011 

1,445,m.00 $ 1,483,879.73 

111 .... S,823.2Q) 111.a31117B.73) 

I 
10.189,864.00 $ 10,650,004.00 

1 •. lWo 13.75% 

2015 2014 

1.093,973.00 S B61,1I1S.00 

11 0il.913.QID (!!1 181S.DO) 

• 
9.534,n8.DO $ 9,285,688.00 

11.47% 10.57% 



BOARD OF EDUCATlON 
TOWNSHIP OF HlU.S8OROUGH 

SCheduee of U. ot.trtcta Propontonate Sh .... of the Net P-"Ilon UablJlty· TPAF 

Olltricrl proportion of the Stat"l nit panllon IIbIlltV 

Ol,trierl proportlonl. Ihart of thl State', net pen. iDOUeblUty 

Disuterl covnd employee plyroIl 

DtIIncl'I PfVPCI'\IanI18Iher'1 of .. net peneton u.bIlly 81. 
percenla"e of ill CClvlllld IItI'IployM payroll 

Plan nduclary net pOlltlon II. plrcentage of thl Iotll penllon 
lIabiUty 

$ 

$ 

Ft.al V.., Endlna JunllO. ,.,. 2011 

DIIb1ctl proportion or ttl. Stile'. net penJlon IlIbIllIy 0,552343OBB2% 0.54098S7739% 

Dtltricrl proportIonIIlI ..... of the StM'. net pentIon IIabIUty $ 372,409,827.00 $ 425,573,855,00 

DIstrId'. cov«ICI ~ payroll • 59.594,lnOO , 57,587,254.00 

Diitrid'i proportfonata Ihn of the net pan.lon liability II • -""""""-- 824.91% 739,26% 

Plan fIducIery nat potltlon as • percentage of the toe.! pension 
nobility 25.41% 22.33" 

Note: ThlllChedul. dOli not contain ten yean of Information .. GASa No. 68 wa.lmplemented during fiscal 
v .... ended June 30, 2015. 
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2011 

0.s...7224614% 

• 344,251,857,00 $ 

, 58,878,6&&,00 • 
604,24% 

2B,71% 

Eahlblt L-3 

0.5486967176% 0.5546117822% 

338,741,582.00 $ 352,832,103.00 

57,513,083.00 $ 60,418,7046.00 

585.50% 583.40% 

2fj,iS% 26Aa% 

20t5 ,.14 

0.541.5907302% 0.535.5OB9824% 

289,482,818.50 S 270,1541,017.08 

54,875,333,00 S 54,031,881.00 

528,53% 500,89% 

33.&4% 33.715% 



BOARD Of EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP Of HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INfORMATION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

PUBUC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 5.66% as of June 30, 2018 to 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 in accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND 

A.BenefltChanges 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 4.86% as of June 30, 2018 to 5.60% as of June 30,2019 in accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP Of HILLSBOROUGH 

Schedula 01 Chang" In tIIo ToUt OPEB Liability and Rotated Ratloo 

Fiscal Yelr EndIng Jun. 301 
2021 2020 2019 

Tolal OPES liability 

_cost S S S 9,381,378.00 

_t 9,335,808.00 

Changet ot benefit Iem1s 

Dlllelllnc<!' between "'JlOCiad and actual expe!lence (24,862,913.00) 

Change! or assumpUon. or other Inputs (24,975,324.00) 

Member contributions 201,136.00 

GlOSS benent payments (5,819,827.00) 

Net chlngo In total OPES HabHlty (38,533,544.00) 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 217184°1391.00 254,173,935.00 

Total OPEB liability - en<Itng S S S 217,840,391.00 

COVered - omptoyee payrott S S 87,702,941.00 S 71,128,150.00 

Total OPES liability as I pen:entago ot 
covered· employee payroll 30598% 

Note: Thls schedule does not contain ten yen of information as GASB No. 75 was Implemented durtng fta 
yelr ended June 30, 2018. 
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S 

S 

S 

ExhlbltM-l 

2018 2011 

11,331,790.00 S 

8,052,210.00 

(33,558 ,812.00) 

216,782.00 

(5,887,208.00) 

(19,843,238.00) 

274,017,173.00 

254,173,935.00 S 2141°171173.00 

89,885,423.00 S 87.529,583.00 

383.81% 405.n% 



LOCAL EDUCATION 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

The discount rate changed from 3.58% as of June 30. 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30. 2018 in accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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Section D 

SCHOOLLEVELSCBEDULES 
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Section E 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
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Exhibit E-l 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
S ...... I RIv.nu. Fund 

Combining Schodula of Program RIv.n_ .nd ExpondltUreo • Budg.lary Baal. 
For the Fhlcal Vo, Ended June 30, 2D2D 

S .... Fodoral Local 

Iml ~ 61!1 !l!I 
REVENUES 

S .... Soun:aa $ 33,482,74 $ 33,482.74 $ S 
F_5ourt:H 1,909,971.69 1,909,971.69 
Local Source. 43,6SO.46 43,650.46 

Toll. RevenUI. S 1 ,967 ,064.69 S 33.482.74 $ 1 ,909,971.69 $ 43,650.46 

EXPENOITIlRES: 
Instruction: 

P""","", SeMceo • S_ 1()()"loo $ 165,176.00 $ $ 165,178.00 S 
Other Purchaed Se_ (4()()..500 sene.) 1()()"500 1,597,555.08 1 ,597,555.06 
General Supplle. 1()()..800 50,258.70 25,726.11 24,530.59 
Tex1booka 10Q.640 4,111.00 4,111.00 

TolallnalnlcUon 1 ,817 ,096.76 4,111 .00 1,188,457.19 24,530.59 

Support SorvICN: 
Personal SeMceo· 5._. 2()()"100 2,72UO 2,722.SO 
Personal SeMceo· EmployM Beneftta 2()()"200 98,322.00 98,322.00 
purchased ProfeUlonaI and Technical Se<v_ 2()()..300 21,995.38 4,947.88 17,047.SO 
Purcha.ed Pltlfu.lo.al· EducaUOnai Service. 2()()"320 24,403.88 24,403.88 
OIhe, Purchased SeIVl ... (40IJ..500 •• ~.a) 201J..500 24,445.00 8,145.00 18,300.00 
Supplies and M.I~.10 201J..600 97.37 97.37 

T .... I Support Sorvlc .. 189,988.11 29,351.74 121,514.50 19,119.87 

Total Expandll .. _ S 1,987,084.89 $ 33,462.74 S 1,909,971.69 S 43,650.46 
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Exhibit E·1. 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of State Prooram Raven ..... and Expendltu188 • BudgetalY Sasla 
For the Fiscal Vear Ended June 30, 2020 

N.J. N.J. N.J. N.J. N.J. 
NonpubUc Nonpubllc Nonpubllc Nonpubllc Nonpubllc 
Textbook Handicapped Nurslno Technology securItY 

Total ~ Seale81 §ervlli" Inillativi ~ 
REVENUES 

State Sources $ 33.462.74 $ 4.111.00 $ 12.210.88 $ 4.947.86 $ 2.808.00 $ 9.385.00 

Total State Revenues $ 33.462.74 $ 4.111.00 $ 12,210.88 $ 4,947.88 ~808.00 $ 0,385.00 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction: 

Textbooks 10().640 S 4.111.00 $ 4.111.00 $ S S $ 
~ 

0 Total Instruction 4,111.00 4,111.00 
0 

Support Services: 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 200-300 4,947.86 4,947.86 
Purchased Professional· Educational Services 200-320 24,403.88 12,210.88 2,808.00 9,385.00 
Purchased Property Services 200-400 

Total Support Services _ 2~35~74 12,210.88 4,947.88 2,808.00 0,385.00 

Total Expendltu_ $ 33,462.74 $ _ 4,111,00 S 12,210.88 $ 4,947.86 S 2,808.00 $ 9,385.00 



101 



..... 
0 
IV 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Local Program Revenues and expenditures· Budgetary Basis 

For the Fiscal Vaar Ended June 30, 2020 

Safety 
Total fZ!!D! ~SA Prolects 

REVENUES 
Local Sources $ 43,650.46 $ 16,300.00 $ 24,530.59 

Total Local Revenues ~65O.46 S 16,300.00 $ 24,530.59 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction: 

General Supplies 1QO..6O() $ 24,530.59 $ $ 24,530.59 

Totallnstruclion 24,530.59 24,530.59 

Support Services: 
Personal SeNices • Salaries 200-100 2,722.50 
Other Purchased SeNices (400-500 series) 200.500 16,300.00 16,300.00 
Supplies & Materials 2QO..6O() 97.37 

Total Support Services 19.119.87 16.300.00 

Total expenditures $ 43.650.46 $ 16,300.00 $ 24,530.59 

Exhibit E·1c 

Autism 
SuPPOrt 

$ 2,819.87 

$ 2,819.87 

$ 

2,722.50 

97.37 

2.819.87 

$ 2.819.87 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
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Pru/tctTHIolluue 

AI1IIIcIaI Turf RepIecomInt II H,S, end PavIng end 
ImptOvementa .t Middle School 

Val10ua Impmvemonls alAI! Schools 

BOARD OF EDUCA'I1OII 
TOWNSHIP OF HlUSBOROUGH 

Capitol Projocto FIH1d 
Summary Sch'- 01 ProjocI Expendlllno 

For thl VI" Ended Jun. 30, 2020 

R_ 
Approvol Budgelary 

I!IlI ApDrpprlatfont 

3/812018 $ 2 ,~,509 ,00 $ 
318/2018 35,418,740,00 

Totals $ 38,4850158,00 $ 
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exhibit F-1 

GAM ExI!!!!!!Ituno ID 0l1li Unexplnded 
Appropri-

PrtorYtI" CumntVUr ~ 

1,704,2B7.48 $ $ 330,241,54 
1,138,121.74 34,278,818,28 

3,409,534,92 S 1,138,121,74 $ 34,808,859,80 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILlSBOROUGH 

ExhlbltF·2 

Summary Schedule of Revenuee, Expenditures, and Chang .. In Fund Balance· Budgetary Baals 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
State SOIIrces • SDA Grant 
Bond Proceeds 
Contribution from private sourcas 
Transfer from capital reserve 
Transfer from capital ouUay 
Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Salaries (100) 
Legal Services (331) 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services (390) 
ConstrucUon Services (450) 
General Supplies (610) 
Land and Improvements (710) 
Lease Purchase Agreements· Principal (721) 
BuIldings other than Lease Purchase Agreements· Principal (722) 
Other Objects (800) 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund Balance· July 1 

Fund Batance· June 30 
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$ 

823,737.14 
314,384.60 

1,138,121.74 

(1,138,121 .74) 

227.732.54 

$ (910,389.20) 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Exltlblt F.2a 

S.hadull of Proj.ct Rlv.nul., Exp.ndltu .... Proj •• t Balance and PrD/lct Sbltua • Budgotary Boola 
ArtIfIcial Turf Rlpl •• """,nt at H.S. and Plvlng and 

Imp_to at Middle School 
From In.lpUon and for thl Vlar Endad June 3D, 2020 

Prior P,riod. Cu","' V"r 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Slale Sources • SDA Grant 
Bond Proceads 
Contrlbullon from privale sourca. 
Transfer from capilli marve 
Tn,"sler from capital outlay 

1,932,000.00 

Tolal Revenues 1,932,000.00 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equlpmenl (73X) 
Salerie. (100) 
Legal ServIces (331) 
Other Purchaaed Proleaalonal.nd Technical Servl ... (390) 126,117.42 
Construction Service. (450) 1,576,150.04 
General Supplies (610) 
Lend and ImpnJYOm_ (710) 
Leasa Purchasa Agreements- Principal (721) 
Building. other than Leas. Purchas. Agreemenl. - Principal (722) 
Other 0bjecIs (800) 
Total Expendlturea 1,704,267.46 

Ex .... (deficiency) of revenu •• ovar (under) expenditures 

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Number 
GoolD"'" 
Bond AuthorIzaIlon Oala 
Bonds Authorized 
Bondslssuad 
Original Authorized Coal 
Additional Authorized Cosl 
RevIsad Authorized Cosl 

Pen:enlageln"",.s. over Original Authorized Cosl 
Percentage Compleled 
Or1glnal Target Completion Dale 
Revlsad Targ.t Completion Dale 

227,732.S4 

NlA 
NlA 

318116 
$ 2,034,509.00 
$1,932,000.00 
$ 2,034,509.00 
$ 
$ 2,034,509.00 

0.00% 
83.n% 

10/1/18 
10111116 

106 

$ $ 

Rovl.ld 
Authortzod 
~ 

1,932,000.00 2,034,509.00 

1,932,000.00 2,034,509.00 

126,117.42 150,000.00 
1,578,150.04 1,884,509.00 

1,704,267.46 2,034,509.00 

227,732.54 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

exhibit F·2b 

Schedul. af Projoct R •• on ..... Expondllu_. Project Balance and Projoct SIIIus • Budgallry B .... 
V.rfau.lmpra •• menll .t All Schools 

From IncopUan and far tho vaar Ended Jun. 30. 2020 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Siale Saurces • SDA Grant 
Bond Pracsods 
ContrlbuUon !ram private saurces 
Transfer from capital reserve 
Transfer from capital outlay 
Total Re.enues 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Salarle. (100) 
Legal ServIces (331) 
Other Purchased Profe .. lonal and Technical Servlcr.l (390) 
ConsJructlan Servtces (450) 
General SUpplIes (610) 
Land and Improvamenls (710) 
Lease Purcha .. Agreements· Principal (721) 
Buildings alher than L .... Purcha .. Agreements· PrincIpal (722) 
Other Objects (800) 
Total ExPendltlns 

Exce.a (dallclency) of ",venue. aver (under) expenditure. 

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Number 
Grant Date 
Bond Authorization Oal. 
Bond. Author1z.od 
EIoacb Issued 
Original Author1z.od Cost 
Additional Authorized Coat 
Revlsod Authoc1zed Cost 

Percentagelncraa .. over Original Authorized Cost 
Percentage Completed 
OrIginal Target Complellon Date 
Revisod Target Complellan Date 

Prlar P.rf. Current VHr 

Rovlsod 
Authortzad 

£l!!I 

$ 

NlA 
NIA 

12110119 
S3MI6.740.oo 
$ 
S 35.416,740.00 
$ 
S 35,416,740.00 

0.00% 
3.21% 

9/1/21 
9/1121 
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S S S 
35,416,740.00 

35.416,740.00 

823,737.14 823,737.14 3,500,000.00 
314,364.60 314,364.60 31,916,740.00 

1,138,121.74 1,138,121.74 35,416,740.00 

(1,138,121 .74) (U38.121.74) ___ "--



SectionG 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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ENTERPRISE FUND 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
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Section H 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
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Schools 

Student Activity Funds: 
High School 
Middle School 
Amsterdam 
Auten Road 
Hillsborough Elementary 
Sunnymead 
Triangle 
Woodfem 
Woods Road 

Life Skills Committee 
Athletic Fund 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Student Activity Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2020 

Balance Cash 
June 30, 2019 RecelDts 

$ 577,179.79 $ 539,481.13 $ 
51,572.80 325,648.41 

207.35 15.00 
49,500.53 65,936.24 
11,660.35 4,529.61 
10,648.77 1,800.91 
2,718.05 1,778.30 
3,255.48 

11,703.54 5,496.48 
3,397.93 2,016.00 

0.68 70,135.56 

$ 721,845.27 $ 1,016,637.84 $ 

112 

exhibit H-3 

Cash Balance 
Disbursements June 3D, 2020 

497,436.76 $ 619,224.16 
296,337.16 80,884.03 

33.00 189.35 
87,096.01 28,336.76 

2,460.00 13,730.16 
12,449.68 

1,160.70 3,335.65 
3,255.48 

6,474.75 10,725.27 
1,724.25 3,669.68 

70,135.56 0.66 

962,860.21 $ 775,622.90 



PayroH Deductions and Wlthholdlngs 
Net Salaries and Wages 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 
Building Rental Account 
Section 125 Plan 
Clearing Account 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Payroll Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and DI.bunements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Balance Cash 
June 30, 2019 Receipts 

$ 174,206.98 $ 39,847,243.00 
12,856.63 47,499,033.09 
2,159.63 2,820,178.16 

84,465.88 
41 ,539.08 138,212.40 

3.14 126,737.80 

$ 230,765.46 $ 90,515,870.33 
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ExhlbltH-4 

Cash Balance 
Olaburn_mantl June 30, 2020 

$ 39,703,960.46 $ 317,489.52 
47,497,575.28 14,314.44 

5,600.27 2,816,737.52 
84,465.88 

135,949.58 43,801 .90 
118,660.00 8,080.94 

$ 87,546,211.47 $ 3,200,424.32 



Section I 

LONG- TERM DEBT 
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.... .... 
U1 

Purpose 

Refunding (1997) 

Refunding (2001) 

Date of 
~ 

1011/01 

9127107 

Amount of 
Issue 

$ 25,300,000.00 

9,095,000.00 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Long - Tenn Debt 
Schedule of Serial Bonds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Annual MatUrities 
of Bonds Outstanding 

June 30, 2020 
Interest 

Date Amount Rate 

1011120-21 $ 1,720,000.00 5.375% 

211121 770,000.00 3.870% 

Exhibit 1-1 

Retired 
Balance Current Balance 

June 3_0, ~019 year June 30, 2020 

$ 5,160,000.00 $ 1,720,000.00 $ 3,440,000.00 

1,550,000.00 780,000.00 770,000,00 

$ 6,710,000.00 $ 2,500,000.00 $ 4,210,000.00 



flIm.2!! 

Energy Savings Improvemenl Program 

Buses, Computer and Malnlenanca 
Equlpmenland Track Replacemenl 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Long. Tonn Dobt 
Schodulo of Obllg.Uons Undo, Cap/tal Loa ... 

For the Flo ... VOl' Ended Juno 30. 2020 

Amount of Amount IlIuod 
Original Dulstondlng Curront 
IW!! Juno 3D, 2019 Ym 

$ 16,085.000.00 $ 12.995.465.66 $ 

676,266.72 405,679.36 

$ 13,401,145.02 $ 
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ExhlbltJ.Z 

RaUrad Amount 
Curront Dulslsndlng 
Ym JUD! 3D, 2020 

$ 753,373.35 $ 12,242,092.31 

132,697,94 272,781.42 

$ 666,271.29 $ 12,514,673.73 



Exhlblt 1-3 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

TOWNSHIP OF HlLlS8OROUGH 

Budgolary Comparison Schodulo 
Debt Service Fund 

For the FIscal Y .... Ended June 30, 2:020 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Anal to 

Il!mtl Transfers llI!!I5ic1 &<IIIiIl &<IIIiIl 
REVENUES: 

Local Soun:es: 
Local Tax Levy $ 2,364,798.00 $ $ ;1,364,798.00 $ 2,364,798.00 $ 

Toial Local Sources ;1,364,798.00 ;1,364,798.00 2,364,798.00 

Stale Sources: 
Debt Service Aid Type" 426,312.00 426,312.00 428,312.00 

Toial - State Sources 426,312.00 426,312.00 426,312.00 

Total Revenues 2,791,110.00 2,791,110.00 ;1,791,110.00 

EXPENDITURES: 

-" Regular Debt_: 
-" Inrerest 291.110.00 291.110.00 291.110.00 
o",J 

Redemption 01 Principal ;1,500,000.00 ;1,500,000.00 ;1,500,000.00 
Total Regular Debt Service _2.N1.1!!1.00 2.791.110.00 2.791.110.00 

Total Expendltu ... _ 2,791.1"LO.00 2.791.110.00 2.791.110.00 

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) El<pendiWn!s 

Other Financing SoureM: 
Dpenilting Transfers In: 

Transferred from C8pi1al Projects Fund 1.594.12 1.594.12 

Excess (Oefidency) of Revenues and Diller 
Financing Sources OVer (U~) ~ 1.594.12 1.594.12 

Fund BaIence. July 1 11.8411001 11.840.01 11.840.01 

Fund Balance. June 30 $ 11,840.01 S S 11.840.01 $ 13.434.13 $ 1.594.12 

RecapituJation of e..cess (Oefidency) of Revenues and 
D1her FIIlaIldng Sources over (Undef) ExpendiWIes 

Budgeled Fund Balance $ S $ S 1.594.12 S 1.594.12 



STATISTICAL SECTION 
(UNAUDITED) 

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. Pursuant to State of New Jersey Department 
of Education requirements issued for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, only two years statistical data 
needed to be presented. Additional year's data will be included each year thereafter until ten years of data 
is presented. 
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Financial Trends 
J-1 
J-2 
J-3 
J-4 
J-5 

Revenue Capacity 

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 

Net Position by Component 
Changes in Net Position 
Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 
Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 
General Fund - Other local Revenue by Source 

J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers 
J-9 Property Tax levies and Collections 

Debt Capacity 
J-10 
J-11 
J-12 
J-13 

Ralios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Direct and Overlapping Govemmental Activities Debt as of June 30 
legal Debt Margin Information 

Damographlc and Economic Information 
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics 
J-15 Principal Employers 

Operating Information 
J-16 Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 
J-17 Operating Statistics 
J-18 School Building Information 
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
J-20 Insurance Schedule 
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-N o 

Govanwneftal adMtBs 
NellrWestmanlln capiIaI assets --U .......... 

Total govenvnarUJ activUIII nat ~ 

a..hIs&-type actMlIes 
Net kweslmanlln capilaf assets ............. 

TaIaI..........",._net_ 

Diatttd-wkJ8 
N8I Investmenl In capilaI assets .....-............. 

Total ci&trict nat ~ 

Sowce: Dlatrict ~ 

S 50.405,821.30 
9,963.858.74 

(33.329.138.80) 
S 270040.542024 

$ 75.810.31 

$ 
~49,847.55) 
f7.Ul3714! 

S 50.481,631.81 
9,963.B58.74 

133.578,986.3Sl 
S 26.866.505.00 

$ 90.931.41 ......... • 134,177.98_ 

S 48,903,121.87 
&,01lI,79D.5S 

~71'1511.1IUt 
S 22,2ii,--4oo.33_ 

BOARD OF EOUCAnON 
TOWNSHiP OF tlU.SBOROUGH 

S 48,345.819.78 
5.772.044.54 

'32.460,603.28) 
S lui57.121.D4 

$ 1000nlO.66 

$ 
(52.568.181 

_53.594.47 

S 48,451,840.44 
5,m,044.54 

132.513.' • . 471 
S2tt1D.71~ 

Hel Pa.ttion b, Component 
Lut r .. RKaI y..,. 

{aa:tIaI_ d """""'*'a} 
U ....... 1ad 

$ 47,960.948.45 
8.917.932.58 

(31.114.693.81) 
$ 23,764.187.40 

$ 121.389.91 
(49,064.15) 

S no325.7i 

$ 48,082.338.'Jll 
6.917,932.58 

(31,lto.757·tf 
-'-23,~513.1 _ 

$ 138.819.16 

• ~'''.82l 434.34 

S .t5,497,357.86 
7.657.568.34 

~.898,640.4n 
S .256,283073 

$ 136,519.41 
(60.229.51) • 18,289.90 

S 45,U72.765.39 
8.974.186.75 

1!!.1587.318.281 
S 25.159.633.. 

$43,995 ....... 
8.549,112.'3 

(1.929.D94.02! 
$ 48.614.417.37 

$ 21.3DB.09 

$ 
1i,rtZ1.'Jll 

635:45 

$ 44,D16.607.35 
6,549,112.13 

:&.92'713156.661 
S .638,35i82 

$ 26.'455 
72, ....... 

$ 98.989.91 

$ 43,176, ...... 
8,iKI3;104.45 

1,·721,22fU!) 
S 48.449,344.86 

$ 31.590.24 

• 164,923.55 
'%513.79 

$ 42,'Jll6,904.117 
6.619.276.85 
~,331.181 

S 48~.850.13 

~ 

S 41.403.50 
5,081,29 

H"OOO," 
S.464.11! 

S 37,35: 
484,751 

$ 502,,0: 

$ 41.440,8& 
5,081.20{ 

1
'

,535.B3C 
$ 44.9660ZU 
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GeneraJ FLrd 
_dod $ 10,919.458.06 $ 5.B71 ,549.25 
Assigned 236,388.59 14,032.20 
Unasaigned - (11,691.74) 2BO.711.D4 
Rase_ 
IJm>seIwd 

ToCaI genaral hrd S 11.144.1g~1 $ 6,166,292.49 

~ 0Ihar GovenmerUI FU'Ids 
Restricted, ntpOrtltd in:: CaoiIaI....-_ $ (910.389.20) S 227.732.54 

DebI~b1d 13,434.13 11,840.01 
AssIgned. reported in: C..,;taI....---~ Urvaserved, reported in: 

N SpeciaI..-uo ..... 
W c.ptal....- ..... 

Debt service hnt 
Total at ofWgo .... ,i'nBIUI flnII S (896.955.07) S 239.572.55 

T alai FLni 8alance8 S 10.247,197.84 S 6,405,865.04 

Source: Dialrict ['Korda 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHiP Of liM I S8QRCM fGH 

FWKI BaIancea· Gov.mmental Funda, 
l.aIt T., FiKaI V ... 

1_ -.oJ ..... cI """"""'*'I 
~ 

S 5.66!i.B68.42 $ 8,741.241.02 $ 7.975,B02.24 
4.445.1B 38,89UlO 

17,823.49 ( .... 021.22) 304.815.67 

s 5.688.137.09 s 8.736.111.80 S 8.280.677.91 

$ 227.732.54 $ (1.704,267.46) $ (116.351.77) 
8,545.45 8,020.12 0.87 

S 23602n.sg s (1)96.247:34) $ (116.3S0.9O) 

S 5.9241415.08 S 71039.864.48 S 8.164,327.01 

$ 6,787.231.80 
161.219.74 
309,942."'5 

S 7,258,459.99 

$ 283,565.8< 

0.87 
S 263.568.71 

$ 7.522,026.70 

EIdIIbit .... 

$ 6.301.075.13 S 7,208.552.83 $ 7.179,333.08 S 5.470,852.53 
94.428.65 1.033,332.47 

98,434.00 1l12,8li3'" 117.878.53 ( .... 38.22) 

S 6.397 ,509.13 ---'- 7.495---L~.6~ SB~,645.OB S 5.389,616.31 

$ 521,866.00 S S S 

0.37 0.37 !0.38) 10.37 

• 521;&68037 S 037 • (0.381 S 10037 

S 6,919,375.50 S 7.495.864.9iI S 8.330.644.70 $ 5.389,626.68 



""" "',. --Tox,." S 100,671,506..00 $ i7.I1190,I60.00 T __ -....., ue.420.34 
Transponalion .... ......... 
........ - 71.DtI2.41 143,021.43 -- 1137 ....... 702.231.81 ............ 4011,814,533.40 47,818,140.4' - ....... l,ml889.5S ~132.<C2L43 

Tgglf~ 160".iiU.33 148.245.4Oi.42 -----.. --- 34,132,.871.71 3&,014,649.94 --- 13,085,274.D4 13,115.11LQ2 

""""- 11,851,120.30 7,150.2lItM --T_ 2.258,300.20 I.CI04,421.32 
StudeftI and InMUdIan relaled serviI:a 18,250,82<1.91 11,203,14&.10 """""-- 4,2M,204.35 4,,332,:IIL60 
GeneratMd ...... ~s.m:es 3,502,l8112' 3,557_.08 
Plant operaIIons and mUIteIWJ;II 8,020,360.81 

._ ....... 
..... - .,447.5Q:2.58 •. '"'.65 ...... -- ............. 43,I38.11Z2.73 

Tran$let 10 QIarter SdIODIs 218,1T.J.67 "--, 1,37Q, 172.31 210.824.71 .... --"" - ....... _00 2,.505,000.00 
w.r.I and 0SNf dIUgeI 291~.OO "'3~..I7 

"'" 
T __ 

ld.,c» .!>3 I_Til. til 
Excaa (~'" rwvenu.t 

ov.-(UnIW)~ 3.841,332.10 4Il,448J18 

BOARD Of EDUCATlOH 
TOWHSMP 01'''' '''''''')(1," 
~ In FCMId BaIInca·aov.mn-tai futIdI. 

20ti 

SD4,582.148.00 
111_.eo ...... 

20,411.21 
771.110.11 

.t5,324,IM.47 
1.791023..24 

143 •• ,117 .• 

3S,:MI, ...... 
12,f1OD.D50.10 
7.%JO,882.03 

2,495,-.31 
17,2II1,321lOt ._...., 
3,8I1,72Il.1I 
8,935,.ae.50 
• "..,64U4 

31.451,283.1' 

070.""" 
".442.OQO.OO 
"' ...... lU13m.,. 

(3,723,7111.10) 

LMl T_ fitCII y.,. 
(nJOdkf.auatbUI DI ~ .-

Z"1 ani 

34J!Ql,211.20 34.111A18.4O ............. 12,4tS,327.se 
7.004,1182.10 ..... ,2<1.55 

2,tii,6i8J12 2,S07,4QS.43 
18.5D4,8J3. 111 10.154,455.04 
",13t.7S4.80 .-...... ~.,.,....., 3.117,:111.51 ...,. ....... 7.734.58OM 
1,474,751.71 7,810,718., • 

2'158258" ............. 
1,101.&81.13 1183,11:15.14 

2.515,00Q.0D ...... 000.00 

131@ff:: .,.:::;:3 
,t,124,412Ji5j 748,120.3' 

AIQI Y"" EndIng:!!:!!! 301 
2015 2014 

34,488,423.211 34,411.125..01 
1 t,2SlO.656.5B 10,5(18,144.27 
UZS.487.74 8,315,iI13.71 

3,112.834.518 2.264,307.23 
'4.415,452.34 14.801.487.58 
4,013,733..15 ............ 
3.413,81iJ181 3,374.8&UI 
7_711321 7,B71,lX15.5O 
......,..". 1.755,218.311 

27 ,28B.8IJ7.1i 27.IIII.'3IUI 
70,lI01.110 ............ 17,318,124.21 

20515,000.00 2,416,000.00 

... ~ 
123.!!l. 

'1028.881.00 
, •. ,ihid! 

_151.20 (17,113.365.4&, 

--.... -, 

"''' 20" 20" 

, 8D.584.810.00 
104,UI.04 

173.00 
51,458.113 

511,935.50 
30.448.~ 

2.505.:335.20 
h:qoL15ii94 

:M.4fIB,.M6.21 ,."..",.... 31,581,800.&4 
8.352.782.1S5 • .:m.775.13 ',V7B,.we.41 ............ 1.1I13,7OU' .. ...".,.".. 
2.911,&75.12 2,375,nlS.OS 2. t04,OI2JU 

15.9118.211.B8 14,783.38L7, 12,158,152.91 
3.120.013.08 3,7115.013.78 """""." 3.015,128..83 2,701,368.71 ...... 1173.10 
r,on,4>U13 7,1&4.333.113 7.457,61Z.32 
7.1I19,T.M.15 e,.581,10861 U9D.Ollt04 

ill _,801.10 24,sDD.877 AI 25.214,57UO ..,_00 
711&,""" .... nuo 1,5110,047.02 

(134.771.71) 2."1.01a.o:l 1.418,81[1.57 
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... 
~ 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30. Total 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

$ 626,538.43 $ 

Source: District records 

3,766,983.94 
356,979.52 
770,924.95 
932,248.05 

1,275,510.76 
954,638.35 

1,370,499.23 
1,342,979.07 
1,434,656.80 

Tuition 

104,686.04 $ 
356,589.21 
367,066.36 
434,471 .21 
687,242.18 
673,033.89 
424,954.71 
611,869.60 
599,420.34 
445,099.03 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source 
Lest Ten Fiscal Veara 

(modified accruaJ basis of accounting) 
Unaudited 

Sale of 
Transportation J!llm§! ~ 

873.00 $ 51,459.63 $ 
9,046.00 20,308.89 

48,442.70 14,422.45 
7,241.96 11,472.71 
4,320.00 19,272.66 
7,920.00 18,061.80 
2,497.50 13,002.79 

900.00 19,971.89 
140,159.00 

24,944.56 70,368.29 

Exhibit J-5 

Lease 
Purchase 

Rentals Refunds Aoreement Miscellaneous 

$ 218,291 .00 $ 90,763.08 $ $ 160,465.68 
57,030.00 72,776.70 3,047,114.21 204,118.93 
67,525.00 75,890.35 70,844.01 (287,211.35) 

115,419.00 57,002.38 145,317.69 
132,806.00 22,193.58 66,413.63 
188,900.00 36,097.91 351,497.16 

43,721.53 470,461 .82 
127,898.00 609,859.74 
129,925.50 55,071.58 418,402.65 
84,218.10 810,026.82 



RscaIy.., 
ElIded 

IlocemIlor 
31. V..,.,.lBnd - Fann 

2011 $ 90,980.000 S 4,643.878.700 $ 96,257.600 
2012 &4,298,100 ",648,T15,5OO 95._ 
2013 87.72D.5OO 4.582.350.500 IMl, 779.600 
2014 77,480,700 4.596.927,400 95,2,",,000 
2015 74,521,700 4,863,1sa,0D0 95.210,600 
201. 71.014.800 4.740,155,800 93,880,300 
2017 75.ea1.3OO 4.833.831,900 86,6D!5.600 
20'. 68.712,100 5,01S.174,2OO 85.5211.600 
20'. 64,894,900 5,217,480,700 80.968,100 
2020 11,551,400 5,_,809,700 78,937,700 

Sawce: IIunk:Ip.a Tu AaMuor 

-' 

~ 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
TOWNSHtP OF HtUSBOROUGH 

A.uoPed Value and EaIImlted Actual Value of TuabIt Property, 
Lut T., RacaI y..,. ........... 

T .... _ 

CommelCial ,- ....." ... v_ 

S 416,718,400 $ 235,374,800 S 77,342,700 S 5,560.552.200 
-407,528.300 217,971,Il00 87,351,800 5.$42,ZJ1.900 
4'0,390,900 213,.328.100 87,255,000 5,577.822.600 
397.914.100 193,864,500 95,970,&00 5,457.2OEi.3OO 3fI7 ._ 

181 • .00.800 102.111,900 5.514,105.200 
417.265,100 191,459,700 1os.781,7OO 5,620.357,400 
436,936,200 193,376,000 106,_ .. 732,538,200 
410.565,800 198,598,100 148,154,700 5,827.732.300 
428.889.100 195.873.200 164,173.700 &,151,689,700 
437,773,500 199.807,400 183,B47,:Km 11.340,327,000 

EldoIDIt .... 

Eslimllod AdUaI TotaJDirKI 
.... V_ Ic..ny _ _ Tax 

Public Uliilies T_ v .... --.!!!!!. 
S 11.795.783 $ 5.572.347.963 $ 5.870,954.140 1 .... 

10.701,416 5.552,933.318 5.9G3.379,480 1.453 
3.627,428 5,581,450,026 6,057.3110,261 1.487 
3,035.857 5.460,241,157 5,878.041,481 1.538 
3,,100.424 5,517.265,824 '.tI07 ,530,358 1.581 
3,047,705 5,623,405,105 5,816.900.054 1.6.12 
3.042,883 5.735.581,0D3 S,1J78.904.94S '.587 
3,108,514 5.930,841.814 6,''''928.885 1.607 
3.166,769 8.155,068.488 6,_.527 • .597 
3,,225,519 8.343.552.519 8.545,829.455 • .588 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Direct and Ovarlapping Proparty Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Yaars 

(rate per $100 of assessed value) 
Unaudited 

School District Direct Rate Overlapping Rates 

Ascal Year 
Ended 

December 31 , 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Basic Rate 

1.359 
1.370 
1.387 
1.472 
1.519 
1.543 
1.542 
1.523 
1.550 
1.544 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

General 
Obligation Debt 

Service 

0.085 
0.083 
0.080 
0.064 
0.062 
0.059 
0.055 
0.084 
0.047 
0.044 

Total 
Direct 
School 

Tax Rate Municipality County 

1.444 0.330 0.3n 
1.453 0.337 0.395 
1.467 0.372 0.413 
1.536 0.387 0.410 
1.581 0.394 0.408 
1.602 0.400 0.412 
1.597 0.401 0.417 
1.607 0.398 0.414 
1.597 0.347 0.415 
1.588 0.344 0.408 

Exhibit J..7 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping Tax 

Rale 

2.151 
2.185 
2.252 
2.333 
2.383 
2.414 
2.415 
2.419 
2.359 
2.340 



..... .... 
ID 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

Brookhave Lofts, LLC 
Texas Eastern Transmission Corp. 
Sunnymead Run, LLC 
KD Hillsborough 44A, Inc. 
Beekman Garden Associates 
Nelson's Comer Associates, LLC 
Hillsborough Gardens Assoc. 
RB Manufacturing, LLC 
Duke's Farm Foundation 
Foothill Estates, LLC 

Total 

Source: MuniCipal Tax Assessor 

$ 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Unaudited 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

52,960,000 
46,B20,500 
41,020,000 
3B,B16,ooo 
24,975,000 
21,133,400 
19,583,300 
1B,636,200 
1B,446,400 
1B,ooo,000 

2020 
0/0 oITotal 

District Net 
Assessed Value 

0.950/0 
0.B40/0 
0.740/0 
.0.700/0 
0.450/0 
0.3B% 

0.340/0 
0.330/0 
0.320/0 

$ 300,390,BOO 5.060/0 

ExhlbitJ-8 

2010 
Taxable % of Total 

Assessed District Net 
Value Assessed Value 

$ 

$ O~OO% 



-­w o 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31, 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Taxes Levied lor 
the Fiscal Year 

$ 120,155,848.25 
122,019,603.16 
123,868,452.73 
126,596.623.85 
128.583.712.76 
132,312.356.54 
137,153,613.01 
139.307.725.86 
144,495.842.83 
148.582.376.23 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the 
Levy 

Amount 

$ 119.177,552.64 
120.923.983.54 
122.888,396.13 
125,603,960.59 
127.627,747.05 
131,459,149.23 
136,281,832.97 
138.469.859.90 
143,490.163.67 
147.615,494.61 

Percentage 01 
Levy 

99.18% 
99.10% 
99.20% 
99.21% 
99.25% 
99.35% 
99.36% 
99.39% 
99.30% 
99.34% 

Collections in 
Subsequent Years 

$ 966.526.62 
769.104.91 

846.463 
812,406 
730.721 
818,159 
833,356 
775.966 
885.165 

Exhibit J-9 

Total Collections to Date 
Percentage of 

Amount Levy 

$ 120,144.079.26 99.99% 
121,693,088.45 99.73% 
123,734.859.10 99.89"k 
126.416.366.91 99.85% 
128.358,467.75 99.82% 
132,277.308.57 99.97% 
137.115.188.74 99.97% 
139.245.825.88 99.95% 
144.375.329.11 99.91% 
147.615,494.61 99.34% 



Fiscal 
Year General 

Ended Obligation 
June 30, Bonds 

2011 $ 28,320,000 
2012 25,045,000 

..- 2013 21,760,000 "" ... 2014 19,275,000 
2015 16,760,000 
2016 14,240,000 
2017 11,725,000 
2018 9,215,000 
2019 6,710,000 
2020 4,210,000 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Govemmental Activities 

Capital Bond Anticipation 
leases Notes (BANs) Total District 

$ $ $ 28,320,000 
25,045,000 
21,760,000 

16,085,000 35,360,000 
16,085,000 32,845,000 
15,905,000 30,145,000 
14,824,826 1,932,000 28,481,826 
14,259,565 23,474,565 
13,401,145 20,111,145 
12,514,874 16,724,874 

Exhibit J-10 

Percenlage of 
Personal 
Income Per Capita 

1.74% 736 
1.49% 644 
1.26% 554 
1.94% 894 
1.75% 825 
1.61% 757 
1.47% 712 
1.18% 591 
0.97% 503 
0.78% 419 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage of 
Net General Actual Taxable 

General Bonded Debt Value 01 
Obligation Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

$ 28,320,000 $ $ 28,320,000 0.51% 
25,045,000 25,045,000 0.45% 
21,760,000 21,760,000 0.39% 
19,275,000 19,275,000 0.35% 
16,760,000 16,760,000 0.30% 
14,240,000 14,240,000 0.25% 
11,725,000 11,725,000 0.20% 

9,215,000 9,215,000 0.16% 
6,710,000 6,710,000 0.11% 
4,210,000 4,210,000 0.07% 

exhibit J-11 

Per Capita 

736 
644 
554 
487 
421 
358 
293 
232 
168 
105 



Not 0I18d Cob! of School Dlslrld 
.. of Dtcember 31, 2018 

NIl OY..tIflI>Ing DellI d School DIsIrtct 
Towrol'p of Hllabonxlgh (100%) 
CCU1Iy d Som ..... • T~~ __ d 
5231,912.534.98 ot December 31, 2019 (10.371") 
U1IIIy AuIhorl1y· T .... Np~.hanI (100%) 

Total 01"", tnd OY,r1applng l!anded Cebt 
81 III December 31. 2019 

BOARD 01' EDUCAllON 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Direct and Overt.pplng GOV8mm.ntll ActJvld .. Debt 
AI or DIcMnbw 31, 2011 

Un.udlt8d 

133 

$ 19,82O,B33!O 

24.050.718.02 
'l1Ue1.00 

ExhlbRJ.12 

S 39,490.000.00 

44,083,510.52 

S 83.573.510.52 
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"" 
Debt Umlt $ 

Total net dabt applicable 10 Ilmfl 

l.egaJ debt lTIIIIlI'n S 

Total net debt appilcabSi to the limit 
as 8 percentage 01 debt \Imit 

Dobt I1mII $ 

Toaai fIIIt debt applCable to Imh 

l.egaJ debt ITIIIIlIIn ~-

Total 081 debt app»caNe to the ImIt 
as 8 percentage of debtlimil 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
TOWNStIIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Legal Debt Margin Inlonnallon 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Un ... _ 

LegoIDobtllargln Calcullldon 10< FIIIcaI Yur 2019 

Z!!!§ 

234,700.839 

14.240,000 

229,460~39 

8 .01% 

Wi 

243.417.148 

28.3201000 

215.097,148 

11 .63"-

EquaIizad valuallon basis 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Average equalized vaJuadon 01 taxable pwpeny 

o.btllmlt (4 '" of avel1lue equaHzallon value) 
To&aI Net: Debt Applicable 110 Umit 

LogaJ debt IJIOIlIIn 

FiscaJ Year 

2lI11 ~ 

S 239.198.676 $ 2.0,791,92 $ 

11.725.000 9,215,000 

S _227.473.676 _ $_237,57e~~_ S 

4.90% 3.73% 

FiscaJ Y.., 

21m = 
$ 243.417.146 $ 240.414,759 $ 

2510451000 21 .7601000 

i!!li 

254,213,237 

6.710,000 

24L~3~7 

2.84"'-

iI!H 

237,248.B13 

19.275,000 

$ 218.372,148 ~~8.654.7~ _$ ~rG~73,~J3 

10.29% 9.05% B.l2% 

Source: equalized valuaUon buu were obtained from the Annual Raport of the StII .. of New ....... ,. 
~ofTruoury. 0;_ ofT .... don 

EahibitJ..13 

6.388.652.847 
6.513.991,538 

S 6.531.524.233 

261,260,_ 
4.210.000 

S 257,050,989 

~ 

$ 261,260,_ 

4,210,000 

$ ~,O50,969 

1.81% 

~ 

$ 235,336,708 

16,760.000 

$ 2j8,51B.708 

7.12% 
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Year 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2018 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Sources: 

P~latlon 

38,476 
38,878 
39,299 
39,544 
39,821 
39,832 
40,003 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Demographic and economic Statistics 
Last Tan Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Per Capita 
Personal Income Personal Income 

$ 1,626,585,212 $ 42,275 
1,676,451,489 43,121 
1,725,619,090 43,910 
1,822,859,768 46,097 
1,873,140,019 47,039 
1,875,250,728 47,079 
1,940,745,545 48,515 

39,702 (Est) 1,989,395,268 50,083 (Est) 
39,950 (Est) 2,080,948,484 52,086 (Est) 
39,950 (Est) 2,137,924,250 53,515 (Est) 

Population Inlormatlon provided by the NJ Dept 01 Labor and Workforce Development 

Unemployment 
Rate 

7.0% 
7.1% 
5.9% 
4.6% 
4.0% 
3.7% 
3.5% 
3.2% 
2.7% 

Personellncome hal been estlmeted based upon the municipal population and per capita parsonallncome f'l8&8nted 

ExIIlbit .1-14 

Per capita personal Income by municipality estImeted based upon the 2000 Census published by the US Bureau 01 Economic Analysis. 
Unemployment data provJdecl by the NJ Dept 01 Labor and Workforce Development 
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Employer 

Source: Dislrict Aeseach 

Employees 

Not Available 

o 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Principal Employers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Unaudited 

2020 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employment 

0.00% 

Employees 

Not Available 

o 

2010 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Exhibit .1-15 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employment 

0.00% 



Exhibit .1-16 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSSOROUGH 

Full-Ume equivalent Diatrict Empio_ by FunctlonlProgram 
I..aat Ten FlacaI V ... 

Unaudited 

~11 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 
Function/Proapm 

Instruction 
RogtJlarToache< 612 640 645 650 651 655 652 653 653 683 
Regular Classroom Aides 12 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Support Services: 
Attendance 1 0 0 0 1 2 1 1 1 0 

HoaIlh 5efvices 18 15 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 
Related Services 18 18 20 17 17 17 23 26 26 25 
Extraorttinaty Services 79 96 92 93 94 94 92 96 111 94 
Guidanco Prolossionai 24 23 20 21 21 21 22 25 27 27 
Guidance Support 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 
Child study Team Pmlossional 24 27 23 24 24 24 25 26 26 25 
Child SludyToam Stall 5 0 4 5 5 5 4 5 5 3 
ImpIOIIoment 01 tnstructian SupeM$o<s 7 7 6 6 7 7 7 7 6 7 ... Improvement of Instruction Support 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 4 

W Media 5elvicos 15 11 10 12 12 12 10 10 10 10 -.oJ 
Instructional Staff T_ing Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 
General AdmirnstralivB Professional 6 7 7 7 7 7 6 6 6 1 
GenoraI Administrative Support 0 0 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 
School Administrative Professional 22 19 20 21 20 20 17 17 17 21 
School AdministnlUvo Support 27 29 31 31 31 31 27 26 26 30 
Central Services Professional 8 15 3 6 6 6 B 8 B 3 
Conlrol Servicos Support 6 0 B 8 7 7 13 13 13 9 
Technology 5 6 11 11 11 11 13 13 12 9 
Operations and Maintenance 72 101 101 100 100 96 114 126 126 123 
Transportation 12 23 34 32 32 31 26 33 35 47 

Total 978 1055 1053 1063 1068 106B 1082 1115 1132 1137 

Source: Diatrict Penoonnol_. 



FIacoI 
_ ... 

Cost ... p.....,- T_ 
-..:!!!!.- ...- E!!I! ....... ~ C_ ----!!!!! n 

2011 7458..0 $ 106,430,684 $ ''',275 -0.63% 676 

20" 7355.0 114,181,553 15,525 1.1 ... , .. 
20'3 7200.0 t18,fi5.118 , ...... ..,.,. 74' 
20'4 7187.0 118,333,738 16,442 .., ..... 141 
20" 72tO.O 119.124,604 16,522 0.411% 14' 
20'. 7201 .0 124.306,4:zg 17,262 4.- 141 
2011 T27$.0 12&.070 • .tOl 11 .... 0.- 143 
20,. 7345.0 14D,B6rt,232 19,178 10.157% 145 
20'. '_0 '45.584,620 '8,658 .. - 156 
2020 , .... 0 142.948.215 19,085 .2.06% 126 

Boun:e: DI&b1ct rICOl'III 

Note: ~ baMd an annual October diItrict CCUIL 

-w 
00 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
TOWNSHIP Of HlU.S8OROUGH _ ........ 

Lat T .... F1acaI Yewa .......... 
........ - ..... 

11M, 

1:0.7 
1:51.1 
1:10.0 
1:10.0 
1:10.1 
1:,0.1 
1:9.0 
1:8.0 
1:8.0 
1:1.7 

............. 
(2aQ2on1y) 
... 4rh ...... 

1:9.7 
HlA 
HI. 
NtA 
HlA 
HlA 

1:10.0 
1:10.0 
1:10.0 
1:9.7 

_ ....... 
1:D.7 
1:10.2 
1:01LS 
1:1».7 
t:Oli1.B 
1:011.8 
1:10.2 
1:10.3 
1:10.3 
1:9.7 

- .... ~ 
1:11." 
1:11 .1 
1:11 .4 
1:11.3 
1:11." 
1:11." 
1:10.& 
1:10.8 
1:10.8 
1:11.8 

_.>17 

'-Dolly AVWllt- Daltr %Chanpln S..-< ......... .- A_ ..... -l!:!!!l lAnA} ~ --
74'0.0 7,113.8 .....,. ... -1300.0 7.116.1 -0.15 ... 88.18% 
7231.1 &.1115.. .. ....". ....... 
1233.0 ,821.1 

0._ 
IUO'O 

7230.4 ...... 7 -0.04% 01.35" 
73'8.0 7,a:J7.2 ,.- .'5% 
7211.2 ...... 1 ... ..,. 01.''''' 
7341a.O 7,041.0 1.07% ....... 
741g.4 7,123.0 0...,. KOt% 
7431.8 7,177.2 0.'1% "'51% 



• i 

.. 
i 

139 

=.S 
..~­!--' 



-"'" o 

u .......... "' __ 
~IofSchoolF~ 

11.QOO-2fiI·gX 

P.,-,ding Pfoieds 
"Sdmi fa. CwiQOE PmI!NjI.' ---_ ............. 

Autin Road In&emNKIiaIe School 
Amstetdam EiIfnIIrItuy ScftooI -_ ........ s..."....., __ 

TRangie EJamenWy SchoOl 
WOOdIem a.m.ntety School 
WoodS Road EJImantaIy School 

DLMict TDCIII 

'Sd1ooI 'adIIUes as deINd undal EFCFA. 
1N.J.A.C.6A::26-t.2 and N.JAC.6k2SA·1.3) 

Sourw: m.trtd ~ 

a .... 
"'-

&HJlifl 

BOARD OF EDUCAllOti 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Gene.-.&Fund 
Schedule 01 RequI.-d lIaIn ..... nco lor School Foc:IlIIIoo 

wl Ten Rlcal V .. ,. 
UnaudI .... 

TenYus 
llIIII = 2I!Ii 2I!Ii 

375.1113 S 2,,818.143.82 S 131 ,028.35 • 212,763.. S 682,76&77 S 
176,000 I,W,T72.01 58,4».58 221,144.'" 388,054.84 
177,374 880,277.23 40,477.81 48,133.38 150,357.34 
58,233 344,160.87 15,035..5i 111,265.13 9:2.470.43 ... ... .... 827.56 19,572.14 31,769.58 205,104.118 
51,450 211 ,180.211 13,ZU.8e) 43,877.88 38,254.01 ... - 34a,3f7.13 11.042..80 311,520.58 135,246.08 
51.830 365,SQQ.87 17,172.77 21.'101 .03 152,436.14 
58,748 569.608.5' 25 7ZS.12 38,268.53 286.33I.1N1 

~1J-11J 

iml 2I!Ii iIUA 2!U! lam m2 liIUl 

6&6JIOl.3e S 187,4'0.7& '181,049.66 S 187.520.40 S 222.071.21 S2111 .181.19 S 176,247.13 
271,3QS.04 83.547.56 101,457.50 12,338.78 133,345.81 79,188.75 112,881.17 
223,148.91 74,358.58 54,304.44 77,044.8D ......... 84,255.09 41,852.23 

3IiI.4S16.14 36.152.04 :z.c,410.31 36,037.28 14,060.441 41.014.49 27,.2O&1.a.z 
77,104.65 35,177.78 "'11111.03 ...... .27 19.379.4J 

21 __ 
21 ,682J7 

29,SUi6 15,D3IiI.2S 28,583.12 17,324.55 14.134.30 12,.9D5.18 12,,808.21 
", .... <0 23,36Q.l. 30.148.58 ... = IO,R5'.31 21,00:2.78 26,358.17 
42,A35.04 ... 00L5II 51,125.82 35,220.52 35,898..83 211,086.60 39,528.73 

52.'90.32 38.531 .ao 45.1518S.29 20648.38 21.290.17 ........!L.7tO.17 22.206.16 

S 7.644,126.09 ~ 315,263.28 S 681 ,745.V2 ~Q20.032.!§ ~441.7OII.52 S541 ,5B2.~ S 57Lsn.55 L495.16t,11.31 S ~,575.e4 S547~1 .5D S .0160,781.19 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

UHca: 
Package Pelley: 

Blanket Real and Personal Property 
Extra Elcpense 
General Uablllty 
Crime Coverage: 

Faithful Perf"""ance 
Monoy and Secutltles 

Electronic Data Procasslng Hardware 
Electronic Data Proce.slng Software 
Audio Visual Equipment 

Automobile 

Insurance Schedule 
As 0' June 30. 2020 

Unaudited 

New Jersey School Board. AssoclaHon Insurance Group: 
Worlce(s Compensation and Employ.(s l.labMty 

UHca: 
Commercial Umbrella Uability 

Aremen's Fund: 
exc ... Umbrella Uabllty 

Bollinger Insuranc. Company: 
Student AccIdent Insurance 

Chubb Insurance Co.: 
Environmental Uabllty 

Selective Insurance Co.: 
Surety Bond: 

Board SecretarylBuslnosB Administrator 
New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group: 

Surety Bond: 
Treasurer of School Moneys 

Source: DIstrict records. 

141 

$ 

Coverage 

267,076,694 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

100,000 
25,000 

1,710,115 
10,000 
24,100 

1,000,000 

10,000,000 

50,000,000 

1,000,000 

550,000 

550,000 

exhibit J-2Q 

Deduct!b!e 

$ 1,000 

250 

250/50011000 

10,000 
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Sheet I 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members.ofthe Board of Education 

. Township of Hillsborough School District 
·County of Somerset, New Jersey 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Township of Hillsborough School 
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Township of Hillsborough School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated September 2, 2020. 

Internal Control Over Flnanelal Reporting 

Management of the Township of Hillsborough School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough 
School District's internal control over fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managemeot or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A Significant defiCiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matten 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township of Hillsborough School District's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a di=t and material effect on 
the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of Tbls Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough School 
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 2, 2020 

~-tLtL 
Timothy M. Vrabel 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CSOO0689 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM: REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE: REPORT ON SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS AND STATE 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS CCFR) PART 200. 
UNIFORM ADMINISmA TIVE REOU!REMENTS. COST PRINCIPLES AND AUDIT REOUIREMENTS FOR 

FEDERAL AWARDS AND 
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 15-08 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Township of Hillsborough School District 

• County ofSomersel, New Jersey 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

We have audited the Township of Hillsborough School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in U.S Office of Management and Budget COMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. Township of 
Hillsborough School District's major federal and state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results 
Section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to 
its federal and state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Township of Hillsborough School District's major 
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 10 above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; in compliance with the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards: and New Jersey Office of 
Management and Budget Circular Leller 15-08 Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and 
State Aid. Those 
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standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative ReQUirements. Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Fedem! Awards and New Jersey OMB's CiI1:ular Letter 15-08 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a maior federal and state program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evideoce about Township of Hillsborough School District's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cil1:umstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of Township of Hillsborough School District's compliance with those requirements. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and StaU program 

In our opinion, the Township of Hillsborough School District, in the County of Somerset, State of New Jersey, complied, 
in all materia! respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Township of Hillsborough School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and materia! effect on a maior federal or state 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the cil1:umstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-OS, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough School District's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the desigu or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal or state will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of federal or state program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the !irst paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be materia! weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Admigistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reouiremegts for 
Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular IS-OS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Scbedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Required by Title 1 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 100, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 

We have audited the financial statements of the Township of Hillsborough School District as of and for the year ended 
June 30. 2020, and have issued our report thereon dsted September 2, 2020, which contained an unmodified opinion on 
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative ReQuirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Reouirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB 
Circular 15-08 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United 
Slates of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Expenditure of Federal Awards and Slate Financial Assistance are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 2, 2020 

~7lJ.v~ 
Timothy M. Vrabel 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CSOOO689 

Chris C.W. Hwang 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. CC033704 

147 



'I J 

'i ~ 
('l " ' ! ' ~ ' ~ ' ~ ~ E.e. ~I!l! 

• . j 
!·U .. .. U ' ~·~ ;1 
I·· Pili~ 

aa 

II 

~ ! U ~ I a~ ~ ~ .... ~:. . 

148 



149 

I , 
• i 
i • I 

t 
I 
1 

I 
i 
• 
J 

II 
;; & 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AW ARPS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Notel: Genera! 

K-5 
Sheetl 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and fmancial assistance present the activity of all 
federal and state programs of the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education. The Board of Education 
is defined in Notel:B. to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial 
assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial 
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and state fmancial assistance. 

Note 2: Basis of Accountigg 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented using the 
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes I:E and 
Notel:F. to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in the schedules is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn 
Adminis!rative Requirements, Cost Princioles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, 
some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation 
of, the basic financial statements. Board has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed uoder the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund 
to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant 
agroementto be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until 
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current 
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. ISA:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not 
recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid payments in the 
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant 
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does nOl The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or 
more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with NJ.S.A. ISA:22-44.2. 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AW ARPS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

(CONCLUDEDl 
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Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 4: 

The net adjustment In reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $50,541.00 for the geneml 
fund and $-0- for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a 
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the geneml and special revenue 
funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues arc reported in the Board's basic fmancial statements on 
a GAAP basis as follows: 

&1m! State I2l!!! 
GenemlFund $ 69,917.86 $ 46,354,758.66 $ 46,424,676.52 
Special Revenue Fund 1,909,971.69 33,462.74 1,943,434.43 
Debt Service Fund 426,312.00 426,312.00 
Food Service Fund 437.262.74 14,287.41 4S!.5SQ.IS 

Total Awards and 
Financial Assistance S 241715229 $ 4682882081 S 49 245,973. lQ 

R~latis!!!~bip to Eedeml !!lid State Ei!!!!IIci!!l ~!1rts 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related fedeml 
and state fmancial reports. 

Note 5: .Qlhg 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value 
received and current year distributions respectively. The amounts reported as On-Behalf TPAF 
Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the district for post-retirement medical 
benefits and the normal and accrued liability pension costs for the year ended Iune 30, 2020. TP AF Social 
Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social 
security contributions for TP AF members for the year ended Iune 30, 2020. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

SCHEPULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Part 1- Summary of Auditor's Results 
Financial Statement Se.don 

A) Type of auditor's report issued: 

B) Internal Control over financial reporting: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered to be material 
weaknesses? 

C) Noncompliance material to basic 
financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards Section 

D) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs 

E) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

F) Type of auditor's report on compliance for major 
programs 

0) Internal Control over compliance: 
I) Material weaicness(es) identified? 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

H) Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. 
Cost Principles. and Audit Reouirements for Federa! Awards 

I) Identification of major programs: 

Unmodified 

__ --lYes 

__ -JYes 

__ -JYes 

S 750.000·00 

X yes 

Unmodified 

yes 

yes 

__ --JYes 

X no 

X none reported 

X no 

no 

X no 

X none reported 

X no 

CFDA Numbelfsl Name ofFedoral Program or Cluster 

84.027 !.D.E.A. Part B. Basic 

84.173 !.D.E.A. Part B Preschool 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HIllSBOROUGH 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AN]) OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Part 1- Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

State Financial Assistance Section 

1) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A 
Programs 

K) Auditce qualified as low-risk audilee? 

L) Type of auditor's report on compliance for 
major programs. 

M) lotemal Control over compliance: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

N) Any audit findings disclosed tbat arc required 
to be reported in accordance with N.J. OMB 
Circular 15-O8? 

0) Identification of major programs: 

GMIS Numberfs) 

20-495-034-5 1 20-078 

20-495-034-5120-089 

20-495-034-5120-084 

20-495-034-5120-014 

$ 890,483.00 

X yes __ no 

Urunodified 

__ --.Jyes_X_no 

__ --.Jycs_X_oonc reported 

__ --.Jyes_X_no 

Name of State Program 

Equalization Nd 

Special Education Nd 

Categorical Security Aid 

Transcortation Aid 
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20-495-034-5094:QQ3 Reimbursed !PAP SS Contributions 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

{CONIINUEDl 

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 
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This section identifies the significlillt deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instllllces of noncompliance related to 
the basic fmaocial statements that are required to be reported in accordllllce with Chapter 5.18 of Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Not Applicable 
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SCHEPULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

(CONTINlJEI) 

Part 3 - Schedule ofFedera! Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 
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This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material wealcnesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state progrsms, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Fedeml Regulations (CFR) Part 200, UnifOrm Admjnistrativc Reoujrements. Cost Principles. and Audit 
Reouirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular IS-08. 

Not Applicable 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AND OUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 

FOR THE )'EAR ENDEP JUNE 3~. 2020 

K-7 

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state 
awards that are required \0 be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FiNDINGS 

Not Applicable 
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